











DRAFT

LOCKHART CITY COUNCIL
REGULAR MEETING SEPTEMBER 18, 2018 6:30 P.M.

CLARK LIBRARY ANNEX-COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 217 SOUTH MAIN STREET, 3" FLOOR,
LOCKHART, TEXAS

Council present:

Mayor Lew White Councilmember John Castillo (arrived at 6:39 pm)
Councilmember Juan Mendoza Councilmember Kara McGregor
Councilmember Brad Westmoreland Mayor Pro-Tem Angie Gonzales-Sanchez (arrived at 6:35 pm)

Council absent:
Councilmember Jeftfry Michelson

Staff present:

Vance Rodgers, City Manager Connie Constancio, City Secretary

Peter Gruning, City Attorney Julie Bowermon, Civil Service/Human Resources Director
Pam Larison, Interim Finance Director Sean Kelley, Public Works Director

Emesto Pedraza, Police Chiefl Dan Gibson, City Planner

Kevin Waller, Assistant City Planner

Citizens/Visitors Addressing the Council: John Cyrier, John Uhls and Stanley Martin, Representatives
of the Airport; and Citizens; Brooks Calavan, Coyle Buhler, Ronda Reagan, Joan Anchondo, and Kathy
McCormick.

Work Session 6:30 p.m.
Mayor White announced that Councilmember Michelson will not be attending the meeting. Mayor Pro-
Tem Sanchez and Councilmember Castillo should arrive soon.

Mayor White opened the work session and advised the Council, staff and the audience that staff would
provide information and explanations about the following items:

PRESENTATION ONLY

A. PRESENTATION OF A PROCLAMATION DECLARING SEPTEMBER 18, 2018 AS
“SUSAN SMITH DAY” IN HONOR OF HER RETIREMENT AFTER 24 YEARS OF
DEDICATED SERVICE AND LEADERSHIP AS EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF THE TEXAS
MUNICIPAL LEAGUE MULTISTATE INTERGOVERNMENTAL EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
POOL (TMLIEBP).

Mayor White stated that Susan Smith was not able to attend the meeting. He read the proclamation and
thanked Ms. Smith for her dedication to the TMLIEBP.

DISCUSSION ONLY

A. DISCUSS MINUTES OF THE CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS OF AUGUST 28, 2018 AND
SEPTEMBER 4, 2018.

Mayor White requested corrections to the minutes. There were none.

lof L0
City Council — September 18. 2018



DRAFT

B. DISCUSS RESOLUTION 2018-15 APPROVING INVESTMENT POLICY FOR THE CITY
OF LOCKHART, TEXAS.

Ms. Larison stated that the Texas Public Funds Investment Act requires governing bodies of an investing
entity to adopt and annually review a written investment policy and to approve any changes to the policy.
She stated that there are no changes to the 2018 investment policy.

Mayor Pro-Tem Sanchez arrived at 6:35 p.m.

C. DISCUSS RESOLUTION 2018-16 AUTHORIZING THE BANK OZK TO ACCEPT STEVEN
LEWIS AS A DESIGNATED SIGNATORY FOR THE CITY OF LOCKHART; AND REMOVING
VANCE RODGERS AND BENNY HILBURN FROM THE CORPORATE AUTHORIZATION
RESOLUTION TO BE EFFECTIVE OCTOBER 8, 2018.

Ms. Larison stated that the Bank of the OZK requires the Entity Authorization as the bank depository for
new accounts and any changes during the depository agreement period. Steven Lewis, new City Manager

will replace Vance Rodgers. Benny Hilburn will be removed as a signer. The authorized signers for Bank
0OZK will be effective October 8, 2018.

D. DISCUSS RESOLUTION 2018-17 AMENDING TEXPOOL’S AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVES EFFECTIVE OCTOBER 8, 2018.

Ms. Larison stated that TexPool requires a Council resolution to change personnel authorized to transact
business with TexPool Participant Services. This resolution will delete retired City Manager Vance
Rodgers and add new City Manager, Steven Lewis effective October 8, 2018. All other representatives
remain unchanged.

Councilmember Castillo arrived at 6:39 p.m.

E. DISCUSS PROPOSAL BY 4J SECURITY SERVICES TO PROVIDE UNARMED,
UNIFORMED, STATE LICENSED SECURITY OFFICER SERVICES AT THE CITY OF
LOCKHART DR. EUGENE CLARK LIBRARY AT A COST OF $17.90 PER HOUR AND
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO FINALIZE THE CONTRACT WITH REVIEW BY
THE CITY ATTORNEY AND FOR THE MAYOR TO SIGN THE CONTRACT FOR THE
SERVICES.

Ms. Bowermon stated that on August 21, 2018, Council considered this item and awarded the contract to
Texas Regional Protective Services. While working to finalize the contract, Texas Regional Protective
Services elected to withdraw their proposal due to insurance requirements, When request for proposals
were sought in compliance with State law, four proposals were received. Texas Regional Protective
Services was the lowest proposal. After evaluating the remaining proposal, although Vets Securing
America is the next lowest proposal, they charge overtime/holiday rates and have been unable to be reached
by phone since September 7, 2018. The next lowest proposal is 4] Security Services. This company has
been providing temporary security guard services to the Library since August 2018. Reference checks
have been performed and show a history of satisfied customers. 4J Security Services is highly
recommended by the Library’s former security guard provider and Library staff has been pleased with their
performance while serving as the temporary security service during the past month. The company will
provide general liability and workers’ compensation insurance naming the City as an additional insured.
The contract allows for termination if services are not satisfactory to the City. Ms. Bowermon
recommended approval.

2010
City Council — September 8. 2018



DRAFT

F.  DISCUSS PURCHASE OF CELL PHONE FORENSIC EXTRACTION DEVICE AND
RELATED TRAINING IN THE AMOUNT OF $18,204 FROM CELLEBRITE, INC.

Chief Pedraza stated that investigations must move fast to find evidence with numerous data sources
impacting each investigation, complicated encryption and the growing shift to cloud-based apps and
storage, there’s no time for device backlogs, uncooperative service providers or long, manual reviews of
disparate data. Lockhart Police investigators need extraction, decoding, and analysis capabilities that
deliver the whole picture in great detail. Cellebrite lab solution series delivers digital intelligence by
uncovering the most data from the widest variety of devices, applications, social media and cloud-based
sources. Investigators are also able to share unified data between integrated tools, examine data more easily
and quickly, and eliminate the need to correlate and merge different data formats. Investigators can then
collaborate on and analyze the information they need to solve cases faster. Chief Pedraza recommended
approval. Mr. Rodgers stated that the equipment can be purchased because Municipal Court traffic fine
revenues which are part of the General Fund are well above budget. There was discussion. Chief Pedraza
stated that Cellebrite is a single source and it is the only company that provides this specific device.

G. DISCUSS IN THE INTEREST OF A PUBLIC PURPOSE, AN ASSIGNMENT OF LEASE
WITH MINOR ADJUSTMENTS TO THE EXISTING LEASE FROM STANELY B. MARTIN TO
MARTIN & MARTIN AVIATION, LLC, COMPRISED OF MEMBERS JOHN CYRIER, KEN
(REINE) SMITH, AND KEITH UHLS, AND APPOINTING THE MAYOR TO SIGN THE LEASE
IF APPROVED.

Mr. Rodgers stated that Mr. Stanley B. Martin has been the Fixed Base Operator (FBO) for many years at
the Lockhart Municipal Airport. Mr. Martin requests to be out of the FBO business effective October 1,
2018. Mr. Martin desires to assign his ground lease to Martin & Martin Aviation comprised of members
John Cyrier, Ken (Reine) Smith, and Keith Uhls. Biographical information about these individuals and
their relevant aircraft experience was provided. The current lease expires on October 31, 2020. Martin &
Martin Aviation has requested, and the City Manager agrees to three minor changes in the current lease as
follows: 1) up to a 10-year lease extension option at the end of the current lease; 2) that the provision
requiring 2.5% of fuel sale be paid to the City annually be removed ($1,500 annually); and, 3) that the FBO
does not have to be open on Sundays.

John Cyrier thanked Mr. Rodgers for his dedication to the airport. He also thanked Stanley Martin and his

father for their commitment to the airport for the past couple of decades. He gave a brief aviation history
of himself, Mr. Smith, and Mr. Uhls.

Stanley Martin stated that he felt comfortable assigning the FBO to members of Martin & Martin Aviation.
Mr. Rodgers thanked Stanley Martin for his dedication to the airport. There was discussion.

H. DISCUSS IN THE INTEREST OF A PUBLIC PURPOSE OF AN EXTENSION OF LEASE
AGREEMENT REGARDING A GROUND LEASE, A NEW STRUCTURE LEASE AND NEW
RATES WITH MR. H.L. BAKER AT THE LOCKHART MUNICIPAL AIRPORT, AND
APPOINTING THE MAYOR TO SIGN THE AGREEMENT IF APPROVED.

Mr. Rodgers stated that Mr. Baker has a hangar at the Lockhart Municipal Airport, His ground lease expires
on July 1, 2020. At that time, the structure on the ground lease becomes the property of the City of
Lockhart. Mr. Baker desires to extend the ground lease until July 1, 2025 for which the current rates apply.
He realizes that he must start paying a structure lease fee of $150 per month in addition to the annual ground
lease (18 cents per square foot) of $576.00. The Extension of Lease Agreement contains all requirements
that Mr. Baker must abide by as the Lessee. Mr. Rodgers recommended approval.

3of 10
City Council — September 18. 2018



DRAFT

I.  DISCUSS IN THE INTEREST OF A PUBLIC PURPOSE OF AN ASSIGNMENT AND
RELEASE OF A LEASE AGREEMENT WITH MR. TED JONES AND IT BEING ASSIGNED TO
MR. PHILLIP CLINE, AND REGARDING AN EXTENSION OF LEASE AGREEMENT FOR A
GROUND LEASE AND A NEW STRUCTURE LEASE, AND NEW RATES WITH MR, PHILLIP
CLINE AT THE LOCKHART MUNICIPAL AIRPORT, AND APPOINTING THE MAYOR TO
SIGN THE AGREEMENTS IF APPROVED.

Mr. Rodgers stated that Ted Jones has had an airport ground lease on which he placed a structure in 1994.
Because of his age and moving out of state, he sold in interest in the structure and desires to assign the
ground lease to Phillip Cline. The ground lease expires September 16, 2019. At that time, the structure on
the ground lease becomes the property of the City of Lockhart. Mr. Cline desires to extend the ground
lease until September 16, 2024 for which the current rates apply. He realizes that he must start paying a
structure lease fee of $121.88 per month in addition to the annual ground lease (18 cents per square foot)
0f $526.50. The Renewal of Lease Agreement contains all requirements that Mr. Cline must abide by as
the Lessee. Mr. Rodgers recommended approval.

J. DISCUSS SETTING UP A “GOOD UTILITY NEIGHBOR CONTRIBUTION PROGRAM?”
WHEREBY UTILITY CUSTOMERS CAN DONATE FUNDS TO GO INTO A SPECIAL
ACCOUNT FOR OTHER CUSTOMERS THAT NEED HELP IN PAYING THEIR UTILITY
BILL. FROM TIME TO TIME; THE FUNDS WOULD BE DEPOSITED INTO A SPECIAL
ACCOUNT WITH COMMUNITY ACTION, INC., OF CENTRAL TEXAS WHICH WOULD
DISTRIBUTE THE FUNDS BASED ON THEIR CRITERIA.

Mr. Rodgers stated that such a program exists in a few other cities in the area (San Marcos and Bastrop).
Community Action would have control of the funds once deposited and would charge an 8% administrative
fee for their services. Their criteria would be the guide in determining who receives assistance. The
program has worked well in San Marcos and Bastrop. Mr. Rodgers recommended approval.

There was discussion regarding how an individual can contribute to the fund. Mr. Rodgers stated that the
City would create a form that would be included with the utility bill.

K. DISCUSSION AFTER PRESENTATION OF A DRAFT CITY OF LOCKHART
PERSONNEL POLICY.

Mr. Rodgers stated that the personnel policy was created in 1986. It has been amended from time to time
through ordinances and/or by staff. [ynn, Ross & Gannaway is the law firm that Julie Bowermon has been
working with to compile the updated draft personnel policy. He stated that he discussed it with Steve Lewis
who indicated that he would present it to the Council for consideration of adoption in the future.

Ms. Bowermon stated that the current personnel policy was created on a typewriter and is filled with
handwritten notes and references, amending ordinances, and it is not very user friendly. Requests for an
updated policy manual have been made over the years by both staff and Councilmembers. The draft was
created with the assistance of attorney Bettye Lynn of Lynn, Ross & Gannaway. The firm focuses on the
representation of public and private-sector employers in matters involving labor and employment issues.
She provided information regarding proposed major changes to several sections of the personnel policy.

There was discussion regarding employees receiving a copy of the personnel policy when it is adopted.
Ms. Bowermon stated that the adopted policy would be provided to each employee in addition to newly
hired employees.

+of10
City Council - September 18. 2018

7



DRAFT

RECESS: Mayor White announced that the Council would recess for a break at 7:30 p.m.

REGULAR MEETING

ITEM 1. CALL TO ORDER.
Mayor Lew White called the regular meeting of the Lockhart City Council to order on this date at 7:50 p.m.

ITEM 2. INVOCATION, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE,
Mayor Pro-Tem Sanchez gave the Invocation and led the Pledge of Allegiance to the United States and
Texas flags.

ITEM 3. CITIZENS/VISITORS COMMENTS.
Mayor White requested citizens to address the Council. There were none.

ITEM 4-A. HOLD THE SECOND OF TWOQO PUBLIC HEARINGS ON A PROPOSAL TO
INCREASE TOTAL TAX REVENUES FROM PROPERTIES ON THE TAX ROLL IN THE
PRECEDING YEAR BY 5.648878 PERCENT. ANNOUNCE THAT THE DATE OF THE VOTE
ON THE TAX RATE WILL BE SEPTEMBER 25, 2018 AT 6:30 P.M. AT THE CLARK LIBRARY
ANNEX — COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 217 SOUTH MAIN STREET, 3*? FLOOR, LOCKHART, TX
78644.

Mayor White opened the public hearing at 7:52 p.m.

Ms. Larison stated that this is the second of two public hearings concerning the increase of tax revenues.
The public hearings are required by State law if the proposed tax rate exceeds the effective tax rate. Ms.
Larison stated that the tax rate adoption would be held on September 25, 2018 at 6:30 p.m. at the Clark
Library Annex-Council Chambers, 3™ Floor, 217 South Main Street.

Mayor White requested citizens in favor of or against the proposed tax rate to address the Council. There
were none. He closed the public hearing at 7:54 p.m.

ITEM 4-B. HOLD A PUBLIC HEARING ON APPLICATION ZC-18-11 BY BROOKS CALAVAN
ON BEHALF OF BPCH, LLC FOR A ZONING CHANGE FROM MH MANUFACTURED HOME
DISTRICT TO AO AGRICULTURAL-OPEN SPACE DISTRICT FOR 5.052 ACRES IN THE
BYRD LOCKHART SURVEY., ABSTRACT NO. 17, LOCATED AT 1500 NORTH PECOS
STREET.,

Mayor White opened the public hearing at 7:55 p.m.

Mr. Gibson stated that the current MH zoning classification allows a subdivision containing manufactured
and/or site-built homes by-right, and a manufactured home park upon approval of a specific use permit
(SUP). The applicant wishes to develop a recreational vehicle (RV) park on the subject property. RV
parks are allowed only in the AO and CHB districts, and require a SUP in both. The first step is rezoning
the property to either AO or CHB and, if the zoning change is approved, the second step will be a SUP
application for approval of the RV park. Because the site is along a street that is otherwise primarily single-
family residential and has a future designation of low density residential on the Lockhart 2020 Land Use
Plan map, staff encouraged the applicant to choose the lower intensity AQ district option instead of the
high intensity of CHB district. This application and public hearing are only for the proposed rezoning to
AQ, and are not specifically for an RV park, which would be subject to approval of a specific use permit

3oll0

City Council — September 18, 20138



DRAFT
if the zoning change is successful. The requested AO district zoning classification is not exactly consistent
with the Low Density residential designation on the Land Use Plan map, but neither is the existing MH
district zoning classification. For uses allowed by-right in the AQO district, it would be considered less
intensive than low density residential. Some uses listed as specific uses, though, could be more intensive,
such as the planned RV park. The only other zoning that more closely aligns with the Land Use Plan map
designation is the RLD district, which is low density residential. Mr, Gibson stated that the Planning and
Zoning Commission recommended denial due to zoning related concerns and because the applicant was
not present. He stated that he found out after the meeting that the applicant attempted to attend the meeting
but was unable to find the entrance to the Glosserman Room. Staff recommended approval. There was
discussion.

Mayor White requested the applicant to address the Council.

Brooks Calavan, 11501 Silverlake Court, Austin, stated that he was present before the Planning and Zoning
Commission meeting and that he had every intention to attend but he was unable to find the entrance to the
Glosserman Room because the doors upstairs were locked. He did not know that there was a second
entrance downstairs. He stated that he is requesting that the property be rezoned to AO to allow an RV
park. He believes that managing an RV park is much easier than a manufactured home park. In an RV
park, the utilities would be leased, not the property. He spoke with homeowners in the area, and none
expressed opposition. He requested approval. There was discussion.

Mayor White requested citizens in favor of the zoning change to address the Council. There were none.
Mayor White requested citizens against the zoning change to address the Council. There were none.

Mayor White requested additional citizens to address the Council. There were none. He closed the public
hearing at 8:29 p.m.

ITEM 4-C. DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION TO CONSIDER ORDINANCE 2018-20 AMENDING
THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF LOCKHART, TEXAS, TO RECLASSIFY
THE PROPERTY KNOWN AS 5.052 ACRES IN THE BYRD LOCKHART SURVEY, ABSTRACT
NO. 17, AND LOCATED AT 1500 NORTH PECOS STREET, FROM MH MANUFACTURED
HOME DISTRICT TO AO AGRICULTURAL-OPEN SPACE DISTRICT.

Councilmember McGregor made a motion to approve Ordinance 2018-20, as presented. Councilmember
Westmoreland seconded. The motion failed by a tie vote of 3-3, with Mayor Pro-Tem Sanchez and
Councilmembers Castillo and Mendoza opposing.

ITEM 4-D. HOLD A PUBLIC HEARING REGARDING ADOPTING THE HISTORICAL
ZONING OVERLAY MAP AS A SUPPLEMENT TO THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP, AND
DESIGNATING ELEVEN PROPERTIES AS HISTORIC LANDMARKS WITH THE “HL”
ZONING CLASSIFICATION.

Mayor White opened the public hearing at 8:30 p.m.

Mr. Waller stated that the process of designating landmarks as provided in the Zoning Ordinance and
Historic Districts and Landmarks Ordinance began in 1996. Eligible properties were identified, and
consent was obtained from owners of some properties. There was never any adoption of any ordinance or
other formal action by the City Council to complete the process. Staff’s responsibility for administering
the Historic Districts and Landmarks Ordinance was transferred from the Building Inspections to Planning
several years ago thereby designating the Assistant City Planner as the Historical Preservation Officer who

: !

City Council — September 18,2018



DRAFT
researched the potential historic landmarks in order to obtain consent from new owners where properties
had been sold. Buildings within the Courthouse Square Historic District are already subject to the historic
preservation rules, so the new landmarks are all buildings outside the district. Because the HL historic
landmark classification is an overlay zoning designation, adoption of a supplement to the official zoning
map is required to show the location of the historic districts and landmarks. Mr. Waller recommended
approval. There was discussion.

Mayor White requested citizens in favor of the historic zoning overlay map to address the Council.

Coyle Buhler, 1000 Magnolia, spoke in favor of the historic zoning overlay map. He stated that he believes
that the designation of a historic landmark is an honor. As a previous Lockhart Historical Preservation
Commission member, he recalls that several historic district landmarks were approved back in 1993 and
1996. The requests during this meeting are additional historic landmarks. He requested approval.

Ronda Reagan stated that the benefits of an officially designated historic structure is that there is a grant
program administered by the Texas Historical Commission for funds only offered to landmark designated
structures for reimbursement of renovation expenses. She recommended approval.

Joan Anchondo, 508 State Park Road, asked about the restrictions of what an individual coutd do, such as
renovations when it is officially designated a historic structure by the city. Ronda Reagan clarified that the
historic designation would only affect any alterations that can be seen from the street. There was brief
discussion.

Kathy McCormick, 703 West San Antonio Street, and member of the Lockhart Historical Preservation
Commission stated that the city does not charge a fee for a certificate for alteration or for the historic
landmark designation. She requested approval.

Mayor White stated that he received a phone call from Donaly Brice who was also in favor of his property
being designated as a historic landmark.

Mr. Gibson clarified that there are two steps to the historic landmark designation process. The first part is
amending the zoning map regarding the historic districts and landmarks. The second step is the designation
of individual historic landmarks.

Mayor White requested citizens against the historical zoning overlay map to address the Council. There
were none. He closed the public hearing at 8:58 p.m.

ITEM 4-E. DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION TO CONSIDER ORDINANCE 2018-21 ADOPTING
THE HISTORIC ZONING OVERLAY MAP AS A SUPPLEMENT TO THE OFFICIAL ZONING
MAP, AS ESTABLISHED IN ARTICLE II, CHAPTER 64 “ZONING” OF THE LOCKHART
CODE OF ORDINANCES; AND DESIGNATING HISTORIC LANDMARKS WITH THE “HL”
ZONING CLASSIFICATION, AS PROVIDED IN_SECTION 64-196(N), CHAPTER 64
“ZONING”, AND IN SECTION 28-6, CHAPTER 28 “HISTORIC DISTRICTS AND
LANDMARKS” OF THE LOCKHART CODE OF ORDINANCES.

Councilmember Castillo asked how an individual would remove the historic landmark designation of their
home. Mr. Gibson replied that such request would be submitted to the Historical Preservation Department.

Councilmember Castillo made a motion to approve Ordinance 2018-21. as presented. Mavor Pro-Tem
Sanchez seconded. The motion passed by a vote of 6-0.

Tof 10
City Council - September 18. 2018



DRAFT

ITEM 5. CONSENT AGENDA,
Mayor Pro-Tem Sanchez requested that consent agenda item 5A be pulled. She stated that she will abstain
from voting because she was not present at the meetings.

ITEM 5-A. APPROVE MINUTES OF THE CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS OF AUGUST 28, 2018
AND SEPTEMBER 4, 2018.

Councilmember McGregor made a motion to approve the minutes of the August 28. 2018 and September
4, 2018 meetings. Councilmember Castillo seconded. The motion passed by a vote of 5-0-1, with Mayor
Pro-Tem Sanchez abstaining.

Mayor Pro-Tem Sanchez made a motion to approve consent agenda items 5B, SC, 5D. SE, 5F, 5G, SH and
SL. Councilmember Mendoza seconded. The motion passed by a vote of 6-0.

The following are the consent agenda items that were approved:

5B:  Approve Resolution 2018-15 approving Investment Policy for the City of Lockhart, Texas.

5C: Approve Resolution 2018-16 authorizing the Bank OZK to accept Steven Lewis as a designated
signatory for the City of Lockhart; and removing Vance Rodgers and Benny Hilburn from the
Corporate Authorization Resolution to be effective October 8, 2018.

5D:  Approve Resolution 2018-17 amending TexPool’s Authorized Representatives effective October 8,
2018.

SE:  Approve proposal by 4] Security Services to provide unarmed, uniformed, state licensed security
officer services at the City of Lockhart Dr. Eugene Clark Library at a cost of $17.90 per hour and
authorizing the City Manager to finalize the contract with review by the City Attorney and for the
Mayor to sign the contract for the services.

5F: Approve purchase of cell phone forensic extraction device and related training in the amount of
$18.,204 from Cellebrite, Inc.

5G:  Approve in the interest of a public purpose, an Assignment of Lease with minor adjustments to the
existing lease from Stanley B. Martin to Martin & Martin Aviation, LLC, comprised of members
John Cyrier, Ken (Reine) Smith, and Keith Uhls, and appointing the Mayor to sign the lease if
approved.

SH:  Approve in the interest of a public purpose of an Extension of Lease Agreement regarding a ground
lease, a new structure lease and new rates with Mr. H.L. Baker at the Lockhart Municipal Airport,
and appointing the Mayor to sign the agreement if approved.

SI:  Approve in the interest of a public purpose of an Assignment and Release of a lease agreement with
Mr. Ted Jones and it being assigned to Mr. Phillip Cline, and regarding an Extension of Lease
Agreement for a ground lease and a new structure lease, and new rates with Mr. Phillip Cline at the
Lockhart Municipal Airport, and appointing the Mayor to sign the agreements if approved.

ITEM 6-A. DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION REGARDING SETTING UP A “GOOD UTILITY
NEIGHBOR CONTRIBUTION PROGRAM” WHEREBY UTILITY CUSTOMERS CAN
DONATE FUNDS TO GO INTO A SPECIAL ACCOUNT FOR OTHER CUSTOMERS THAT
NEED HELP IN PAYING THEIR UTILITY BILL FROM TIME TO TIME; THE FUNDS WOULD
BE DEPOSITED INTO A SPECIAL ACCOUNT WITH COMMUNITY ACTION, INC., OF
CENTRAL TEXAS WHICH WOULD DISTRIBUTE THE FUNDS BASED ON THEIR
CRITERIA.

Councilmember Mendoza made a motion to approving setting up a “Good Utility Neishbor Contribution
Program™, as presented. Mayor Pro-Tem Sanchez seconded. The motion passed by a vote of 6-0.

8of 10
City Council — September 18, 2018 | %



DRAFT

ITEM 6-B. DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION AFTER PRESENTATION OF A DRAFT CITY OF
LOCKHART PERSONNEL POLICY.
Mayor White stated that Steve Lewis will return the policy to the Council at a future meeting.

ITEM 6-C. DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION REGARDING APPOINTMENTS TO VARIOUS
BOARDS, COMMISSIONS OR COMMITTEES.
Mayor White requested appointments to boards or commissions. There were none.

ITEM 6-D. DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION REGARDING THE PROPOSED FISCAL YEAR
2018-2019 GENERAL FUND, ENTERPRISE FUND, DEBT FUND BUDGETS, AND PROPOSED
FUNDING SOURCES AND, DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION REGARDING THE BUDGET AND
TAX RATE ADOPTION CALENDAR, IF NECESSARY.

Mayor White announced that the adoption of the budget and tax rate would be held on September 25, 2018
at 6:30 p.m. in the Clark Library, 217 South Main Street, Council Chambers, 3™ Floor, Lockhart, Tx.

ITEM 7. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT, PRESENTATION AND POSSIBLE DISCUSSION,

o Update: The contractor has completed about 75% of the new 18” water main on West Martin Luther
King Jr. Industrial Blvd. that will connect to the large main on State Park Road at Patton.

e Update: The Stanton Apartments construction is well underway.

» Update: The new Valero Store and strip center just south of Stanton Apartments has its permits and
preconstruction meeting has been held.

o Update: Vintage Springs Developer has requested that the City Manager allow them to start their dirt
work.

¢ Report: Greater Caldwell County Hispanic Chamber Diez y Seis event.

* Report: Staff working on Texas Swing Festival with event representatives to be held September 28 and
290.

* Reminder: Staff will be presenting rate ordinances for new water costs and trash collections services at
the September 25 meeting at which the Tax Rate and the FY 18-19 Budget will considered for adoption.

ITEM 8. COUNCIL AND STAFF COMMENTS — ITEMS OF COMMUNITY INTEREST
Councilmember Westmoreland wished the school football teams luck this year. He expressed condolences
to the family of Butch Cathey for their loss.

Councilmember Mendoza expressed condolences to those that have recently lost a loved one. He
congratulated the Hispanic Chamber for a successful Diez y Seis event.

Mayor Pro-Tem Sanchez expressed condolences to the families of Rodrigo Ramirez, Jovita Castillo, Emma
Jean Schulle and Johnny Zapata for their loss. She congratulated the Hispanic Chamber for a successful
Diez y Seis event regardless of the bad weather.

Councilmember McGregor invited all to the first annual Swing & BBQ Festival on September 28-30.
Saturday was the first day of fall. She invited all to a national event that The Clock Museum will host on
October 12,

9ol 10
City Council - September 18. 2018 { ?



DRAFT

Councilmember Castillo expressed condolences to those that lost a loved one. He thanked the Hispanic
Chamber for hosting the Diez y Seis event regardless of the rainy weather. He thanked Mayor for the
proclamation to the Gonzalez band. He wished the Swing Festival the best of luck. He encouraged
everyone to protect against mosquitoes. He stated that he attended a NALEO Emergency Preparedness
class that helped him learn about methods to assist in making emergency situations smoother.

Mayor White thanked those that attended the Carver School meeting and he gave a brief update about the
outcome. He invited everyone to the Swing Festival that will be held September 28-30. He congratulated
the Hispanic Chamber for a successful Diez y Seis event regardless of the rainy weather. He met with new
City Manager, Steve Lewis today and they discussed his plan, which is positive. Mr. Rodgers’ last meeting
will be October 2,

ITEM 9. ADJOURNMENT,
Mavyor Pro-Tem Sanchez made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Councilmember Mendoza seconded. The
motion passed by a vote of 6-0. The meeting was adjourned at 9:22 p.m.

PASSED and APPROVED this the 2" day of October 2018.

CITY OF LOCKHART

Lew White, Mayor
ATTEST:

Connie Constancio, TRMC
City Secretary

10 of 10
City Council — September 18. 2018 l (Jf






CONTRACT CHANGE ORDER NQ. 1
MLK 18" WATER MAIN IMPROVEMENTS

OWNER: CITY OF LOCKHART
CONTRACTOR: BRCT, LLC dba BLACKROCK CONSTRUCTION

ENGINEER: TRC ENGINEERS, INC.
September 26, 2018

THE CONTRACTOR IS HEREBY REQUESTED TO COMPLY WITH THE FOLLOWING CHANGES FROM THE CONTRACT PLANS AND

SPECIFICATIONS:

Quantity Amount

ltem Cantract Unit Contract (+) Increase | {+) Increase | Revised Revised

No. item Description Quantity |Units|  Price Amount (-} Decrease| {-} Decrease | Quantity {Units| Amount
P.1 6" Dl Fire Hydrant Leads 40 | LF $45.00 $1,800.00 $0.00 401 LF $1,800.00
P.2 12" C900 DR18 PVC Pipe 20| LF $78.00 $1,560.00 $0.00 20| LF $1,560.00
P.3 18" C805 DR 18 PVC Pipe 6,100 | LF $60.00] $366,000.00 -125 ($7,500.00) 5975 | LF | $358,500.00
P4 Fire Hydrants 4| EA 1 $3,600.00 $14,400.00 $0.00 4| EA $14,400.00
P.5 D! Main Line Fittings 7.00 JTON| §3,500.00] $24,500.00 $0.00 7.00 |TON| $24,500.00
F.6 2" AWWA C515 Gate Valve 1] EA $500.00 $500.00 $0.00 1] EA $500.00
P7 6" AWWA C515 Gate Valve 5| EA $825.00 $4,125.00 $0.00 5] EA $4.125.00
P.8 12" AWWA C515 Gate Valve 1| EA| $2,350.00 $2,350.00 $0.00 1] EA $2,350.00
P.9 18" AWWA C504 Butterfly Valve 5] EA| $3,700.00] $18,500.00 $0.00 5| EA $18,500.00
P.10 112" Water Main Connection 2] EA{ $8,200.00 $16,400.00 $0.00 2| EA $16,400.00
P.11 16" Water Main Connection 11 EA ] $1400.00 $1,400.00 $0.00 1] EA $1,400.00
P.12  {2" Water Main Connection 21 EA| $1,100.00 $2,200.00 $0.00 2| EA $2,200.00
P.13  |Asphalt Street Repair 50 | LF $85.00 $4,250.00 $0.00 50 [ LF $4,250.00
P.14 |OSHA 6,160 | LF $0.10 $616.00 $0.00 6,160 { LF $6516.00
P.15 ]Pollution Prevention Plan 11 LS| $2000.00 $2,600.00 $0.00 1] LS $2,000.00
C0O1.1 |Install 18" DI Pipe $120.70 $0.00 125]  $15,087.50 125 LF $15,087.50
ORIGINAL CONTRACT AMOUNT $460,601.00
NET CONTRACT INCREASE $7,587.50
TOTAL REVISED CONTRACT AMOUNT $468,188.50

THE NET INCREASE IN THE CONTRACT AMOUNTS TO $7,5687.50, WHICH MAKES THE NEW ADJUSTED CONTRACT TOTAL $468,188.50. THIS
WILL BECOME A SUPPLEMENT TQ THE CONTRACT AND ALL PROVISIONS WILL APPLY HERETO. THIS CHANGE IS REQUIRED BY TCEQ TO

CHANGE PIPE TYPE.

Charles W. Scheler,P. F
TRC Engineers. Inc,

Harold Gamblin, Principal/General Manager
BRCT, LLC dba Blackrock Construction

Lew White. Mayor
City of .ockhart

o 127 Na

Date S

!

i
/

Date

Date







@ TRC TB.P.E #F-86832

505 East Huntland Drive
Suite 250
Austin, TX 78752

\)"

512.454 8715 rhan
512.d54.2433  ray

www TRCsolutions.com

July 11,2018

Mr. Vance Rodgers. City Manager
City of Lockhart

P.O. Box 239

Lockhart, Texas 78644

RE: MLK 18” Water Main Improvements
Bid Award Consideration

Dear Vance;

The bid opening for the above referenced project was held on July 10, 2018. The bids range from a
low of $460,601.00 to a high of $951,358.00 as shown on the attached bid tabulation. The project
consists of the installation of 6.100 LF of 18” PVC water main along MLK Blvd from near Hwy 183 to
FM 20.

The low bid is well within TRC s recent cost estimate of $610,000,

TRC does not have previous experience with the low bidder, Blackrock Construction. TRC has
conducted reference checks and has found that Blackrock is in the process of satisfactory completing
similar utility projects for the Cities of Waco, Weatherford and New Braunfels.,

With the above items considered it is recommended that Blackrock Construction be awarded a contract
in the amount of $460,601.00 for the MLK 18" Water Main Improvements Project. The contractor has

provided a bid bond and will be required to furnish a Performance Bond and Payment Bond to the
City.

If you have any questions regarding this information, please feel free to contact this otfice.

Sincerely,

Charles W, Scheler, P.E. -
Senior Project Manager

Enclosures Bid Tab /5



City of Lockhart
MLK 18" Water Main improvements
Bid Tabulation

July 10, 2018 - 11:00 AM

OTRC

Blackrock Construction Lupe Rubio Construction Co., Inc. |Bruce Flanigan Construction, Inc.

1475 Heritage Pkwy.. Suite 113 |P.O. Box 1838 5114 Lampasas Lane

Mansfield, Toxas 76063 Kingsland, Texas 78639 Belton, Texas 76513
ltem [item Description Qty. | Unit [Unit Price  |lotal Unit Price [ Total Unit Price  [Total
P.1 16" DI Fire Hydrant Leads 40| LF $45.00 $1,800.00 $60.19 $2,407.60 $69.80 $2,792.00
P.2 112" C200 DR18 PVC Pipe 20] LF $78.00 $1,560.00 $69.19 $1,383.80 $64.20 $1,284.00
P.3 |18" C905 DR 18 PVC Pipe 8100} LF $60.00[ $366,000.00 $59.86 $365,146.00 $60.90 $371,490.00
P.4 JFire Hydrants 41 EA $3,600.00{ $1440000] $3,338.71 $13,354.84] $2,724.00 $10,896.00
P.5 |DI Mam Line Fittings 7 | TON $3,500.00] $24,500.00] $4,947 50 $34,632.50] $5,638.00 $39,466.00
P6 |2" AWWA C515 Gate Valve 11 EA $500.00 $500.00 $592.45 $592.45 $591.00 $591.00
P.7 {6" AWWA C515 Gate Vaive 5] EA $825.00 $4,125.00] $1,201.88 $6,009.40 $928.50 $4,642.50
P.8 {12" AWWA C515 Gate Valve 11 EA $2,350.00 $2,350.00] $3,078.28 $3,078.28] $2,255.00 $2,255.00
P.9 18" AWWA C504 Butterfly Vaive 5| EA $3,700.00] $18,500.00 $4,650.38 $23,251.90] $3,470.00 $17,350.00
P 10 {12" Water Main Connection 2] EA $8,200.00f $16.400.00] $4,170.42 $8,340.84] $1,349.00 $2,688.00
P 11 |6" Water Main Connection 1] EA $1,400.00 $1.400.00] $2,668.33 $2,668.33] $1.349.00 $1,349.00
P.12 |2" Water Main Connection 21 EA $1,100.00 $2,200.00] $1,189.01 $2,378.02] $1,377.00 $2,754.00
P.13 |Asphalt Street Repair 50| LF $85.00 $4,250.00 $46.80 $2,340.00 $57.80 $2,890.00
P.14 JOSHA 6160 ] LF $0.10 $616.00 $1.17 $7,207.20 $2.20 $13,552.00
P.15 |Pollution Prevention Plan 11 LS $2,000.00 $2,000.00] $10,530.00 $10,530.00] $31.650.00 $31,650.00

TOTAL PROPOSALT $450,601.00 .321. g
LN}

Page 1 of 6



City of Lockhart
MLK 18" Water Main improvements

Bid Tabulation
July 10, 2018 - 11:00 AM

OTRC

Whitney Underground Utilities, Inc.
P.0. Box 678
Vatley Mills, Texas 76689

Qro Mex Construction Co., Inc. [M&C Fonseca Construction Co., Inc.
2801 Prairie Creek Road
Granite Shoals, Texas 78654

1901 Prairie Creek Road
Granite Shoals, Texas 78654

ltem [Item Description Qty. | Unit {Unit Price |lotal Unit Price  [Total Unit Price  JTotal
P.1 16" DI Fire Hydrant Leads 401 LF $50.00 $2,000.00 $50.00]  $2,000.00 $30.00 $1,200.00
P2 ]12" C900 DR18 PVC Pipe 20] LF $50.00 $1,000.00 $55.00]  $1,100.00 $31.50 $630.00
P.3 [18" C905 DR 18 PVC Pipe 6,100 | LF $69.00 $420,900.00 $65.00] $396,500.00 $68.00 $414,800.00
P4 |Fire Hydrants 4| EA"| $3.500.00 $14,000.00] $5,000.00{  $20,000.00] $3,500.00 $14,000.00
P 5 |Di Main Line Fittings 7| TON| $2,500.00 $17,500.00f $4,500.00] $31.500.00] $4.000.00 $28,000.00
P.6 {2 AWWA G515 Gate Valve 1] EA | $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $500.00 $500.00]  $1,400.00 $1,400.00
P.7 |[6" AWWA C515 Gate Valve 5] EA | $1.100.00 $5.500.00 $950.00) $4.750.00] $1,800.00 $9,000.00
P 8 112" AWWA C515 Gate Valve 1] EA | $2,500.00 $2,500.00} $2,500.00f $2,500.00] $2,800.00 $2,800.00
P.9 |18" AWWA C504 Butterfly Vaive 51 EA | $8.300.00 $41,500.00] $4.750.00] $23,750.00] $5,250.00 $26,250.00
P.10 |12" Water Main Connection 21 EA | $1,500.00 $3,000.00] $4,500.00]  $9,000.00]  $3,250.00 $6,500.00
P.11 [8" Water Main Connection 1] EA | $2,600.00 $2,600.00] $3,500.00 $3,500.00 $2,965.00 $2,965.00
P.12 |2" Water Main Connection 2] EA | $1,500.00 $3,000.00f $1,500.00 $3,000.00 $1,800.00 $3,600.00
P.13 JAsphait Street Repair 50§ LF $100.00 $5,000.00 $25.00 $1,250.00 $70.00 $3,500.00
P.14 JOSHA 6,160 LF $0.10 $616.00 $2.00]  $12,320.00 $2.50 $15,400.00
P.15 [Pollution Prevention Plan 1] (S | $3,000.00 $3,000.00] $12,000.00] $12,000.00] $3,000.00 $3.000.00
TOTAL PROPOSALT $523,116.00 670. $533,045.00

Page 2 of 6



City of Lockhart
MLK 18" Water Main Improvements
Bid Tabulation

July 10, 2018 - 11:00 AM

OTRC

Heavy Roadway Construction Services {Peabody General Contractors, Inc. §Cash Construction Company Inc.
14021 Laus Lane 915 Dalton Lane 217 Kingston Lacy Boulevard
_ Elgin, Texas 78621 Austin, Texas 78742 Pflugerville, Texas 78660

ttem [item Description Qty. | Unit JUnitPrice [1otal Unit Price_ [Total Junit Price ™ [Total
P.1 |6" DI Fire Hydrant Leads 40] LF $100.37 $4,014.80 $50.00 $2,000.00] $70.00 $2,800.00
P.2 112" C800 DR18 PVC Pipe 201 LF $85.79 $1,715.80 $65.00 $1,300.00 $56.50 $1,130.00
P.3 118" C905 DR 18 PVC Pipe 8,100 | LF $66.64| $406,504.00 $77.00 $469,700.00 $77.00] $469,700.00
P.4 |Fire Hydrants 41 EA $5,498.31 $21,893.24] $4,000.00 $16,000.00 $2,400.00 $9,600.00
P.5 {DI Main Line Fittings 7] TON $2,548.58 $17,840.06] $4,500.00 $31,500.00 $3,935.00 $27,545.00
P& |2" AWWA C515 Gate Valve 1] EA $635.18 $635.18 $500.00 $500.00 $600.00 $600.00
P.7 16" AWWA C515 Gate Valve 5| EA $926.84 $4,634.20] $1,000.00 $5,000.00 $900.00 $4,500.00
P.8 [12" AWWA C515 Gate Valve 11 EA $2,246.01 $2,246.011 $3,200.00 $3,200.00 $2,300.00 $2,300.00
P.9 18" AWWA C504 Butterfly Vaive 51 EA $8,265.69 $41,328.45] $4,500.00 $22,500.00 $3,600.00 $18,000.00
P.10 ]12" Water Main Connection 2] EA $800.42 $1,600.84] $2,500.00 $5,000.00 $1,400.00 $2,800.00
P.11 I6" Water Main Connection 1} EA $800.42 $800.42] $2,000.00 $2.000.00 $1.000.00 $1.000.00
P.12 |2" Water Main Connection 2} EA $400.21 $800.42] $1,800.00 $3,600.00 $700.00 $1,400.00
P.13 JAsphalt Street Repair 80| LF $60.67 $3,033.50 $60.00 $3,000.00 $125.00 $6,250.00
P 14 JOSHA 61601 LF $3.91 $24,085.60 $1.50 $9,240.00 $0.50 $3,080.00
P.15 {Pallution Prevention Plan 1] LS $1,940.40 $1,840.40] $8,000.00 $8,000.00f $33,500.00 $33,500.60

TOTAL PROPOSAL | 02, ,040. $554,205.00]

Page 3 of 6



City of Lockhart
MLK 18" Water Main Improvements
Bid Tabulation

July 10, 2018 - 11:00 AM

OTRC

Austin Underground, Inc.
18825 Packsaddle Road
Jonestown, Texas 78645

Black Castle General Contractor
2115 Stephens Place, Suite 210
New Braunfels, Texas 78130

JKB Construction Company, LLC

14750 Hwy. 29W

Liberty Hili, Texas 78642

ftem |item Description Qty. | Unit |Unit Price [Total Unit Price  Jlotal Unit Price  |Total

P.1 |6" DI Fire Hydrant Leads 401 LF $40.00 $1,600.00 $101.00 $4,040.00 $52.00 $2,080.00
P.2 [12" C900 DR18 PVC Pipe 204 LF $90.00 $1,800.00 $75.00 $1.500.00 $54.00 $1,080.00
P.3 }18" C905 DR 18 PVC Pipe 6100 LF $82.00| $500,200.00 $75.00 $457 500.00 $81.50] $497,150.00
P.4 JFire Hydrants 41 EA $3,200.00 $12,800.00] $6,500.00 $26,000.00 $2.940.00 $11,760.00
P.5 [DI Mair: Line Fittings 71 TON | $3,000.00 $21,000.00] $4,700.00 $32,900.00 $3,880.00 $27.160.00
P& 12" AWWA C515 Gate Valve 11 EA $700.00 $700.00] $1,200.00 $1,200.00 $650.00 $650.00
P.7 168" AWWA C515 Gate Valve S| EA $1,100.00 $5,500.00] $1,500.00 $7,500.00 $1,150.00 $5,750.00
P.8 2" AWWA C515 Gate Valve 11 EA $2,800.00 $2,800.00f $3,500.00 $3,500.00 $2,585.00 $2,585.00
P9 [18" AWWA C504 Butterfly Valve 5{ EA $4,500.00 $22,500.00] $6,700.00 $33,500.00 $4,785.00 $23,925.00
P 10 12" Water Main Connection 2| EA $4,000.00 $8,000.00] $5,200.00 $10,400.00 $2,525.00 $5,050.00
P.11 16" Water Main Connection 1] EA $3,500.00 $3,500.00F $4,700.00 %4 700.00 $2,285.00 $2,285.00
P 12 |2" Water Main Connection 2] EA $1,500.00 $3,000.00{ $2,000.00 $4,000.00 $1.285.00 $2,570.00
P 13 |Asphalt Street Repair 50{ LF $45.00 $2,250.00 $89.00 $4.450.00 $165.00 $8,250.00
P.14 JOSHA 6,160 | LF $1.00 $6,160.00 $1.00 $6,160.00 $1.25 $7.700.00
P.15 |Pollution Prevention Plan 11 LS $1,200.00 $2,800.00 $4,000.00 $4,000.00

$1,200.00

TOTAL PROPOSAL |

$2,800.00

5

Paged4of 6




City of Lockhart

MLK 18" Water Main Improvements

Bid Tabulation
July 10, 2018 - 11:00 AM

OTRC

Whitestone Civyil Construction, LLC

Austin Constructors, LLC

MA Smith Contracting Co., Inc.

P.O. Box 1537 P.O. Box 18565 15308 Ginger Street
Cedar Park, Texas 78630 Austin, Texas78760 Ausitn, Texas 78728

Item Jitem Description Qty. | Unit [Unit Price  TTotal Unit Price  [Total Unit Price JTotal

P.1_|6" DI Fire Hydrant Leads 40 LF $50.00 $2,000.00 $40.00{  3$1,600.00 $70.00]  $2.800.00
P.2 12" C900 DR18 PVC Pipe 20| LF $56.00 $1.120.00]  $126.00] $2.400.00 $55.00{ $1,100.00
P.3 [18" C905 DR 18 PVC Pipe 6,100 | LF $79.00 $481,900.00 $85.00| $518.500.00 $84.00| $512.400.00
P.4 [Fire Hydrants 4| EA $3,400.00 $13,600.00] $4.000.00] $16,000.00 $2,800.00] $11.600.00
P.5 IDI Main Line Fittings 7| TON| $33800.00 $26,600.00] "$2.500.00] $17,500.00 $2,800.00] $19,600.00
P.6 |2" AWWA C515 Gate Valve 1| EA $500.00 $500.00]  $600.00 $600.00f $1,000.00]  $1.000.00
P.7 16" AWWA C515 Gate Valve 5] EA $1,100.00 $5.500.00] $1.000.00]  $5.000.00 $1,300.00] $6.500.00
P.8 12" AWWA C515 Gate Vaive 1] EA $2,700.00 $2,700.00] $2,300.00] _ $2,300.00 $3.200.00]  $3.200.00
P.9 [18" AWWA C504 Butierfly Valve 5] EA $4,000.00 $20,000.00] $5,000.00] $25.000.00 $5,300.00] 326.500.00
P.10 [12" Water Main Connection 2] EA $7,800.00 $15,600.00] $3,500.00] $7.000.00 $1.800.00]  $3.600.00
P.11 8" Water Main Connection 11 EA $1,800.00 $1.800.00] $2,500.00] $2500.00 $1,600.00] ~ $1.600.00
P.12 [2" Water Main Connection 2] EA $900.00 $1,800.00] $1,500.00] $3,000.00 $350.00 $700.00
P.13 [Asphalt Street Repair 50| LF $100.00 $5,000.00 $48.00{ $2,400.00 $140.00] $7.000.00
P.14 JOSHA 6,160 | LF $2.00 $12,320.00 $2.00] $12,320.00 $1.00] $6.160.00
P.15 {Pollution Prevention Pian 11 LS | $25000.00 $25,000.00] $3,500.00]  $3,500.00 $36,000.00] ~ $36.000.00

TOTAL PROPOSALT 440. ,620. 760,
N
O

Page Sofe




City of Lockhart

MLK 18" Water Main Improvements

Bid Tabulation
July 10, 2018 - 11:00 AM

O TRC

Excel Trenching Lonestar Sitework Thyssen-Laughlin, Inc.
1515 N. Town East Blvd., Ste 138}105 Palo Duro Cyv. 14409 Brittmoore Road
_ Mas@gite. Texas 75150 Kyle, Texas 78640 Houston, Texas 77043
ftem [item Description Qty. [ Unit |Unit Price  [Total Unit Price  |Total Unit Price [Total
P.1 |6" DI Fire Hydrant Leads 401 LF $20.00 $800.00 $93.80 $3.752.00 $64 50 $2,580.00
P.2 112" C900 DR18 PVC Pipe 201 LF $22.50 3450.00 $133.60 $2,672.00 $73.50 $1,470.00
P.3 118" C905 DR 18 PVC Pipe 56,1001 LF $116.00] $707,600.00 $110.30] $672,830.00] $115.00 $701,500.00
P.4 [Fire Hydrants 41 EA $4,320.00 317,280.00] $4.975.00 $19,900.00] $4,223.00 $16,892 00
P.5 |DI Main Line Fittings 7| TON $1.00 $7.00] $8,800.00[ 3$61,600.00 $6,702.00{ $46,914.00
P.6 12" AWWA C515 Gate Valve 11 EA $2,800.00 $2,800.00 $555.00 $555.00] $1,000.00 $1,000.00
P.7 [6" AWWA C515 Gate Valve 31 EA $3,050.00 $15,250.00] $1,433.00 $7,165.00] $1,730.00 $8,650.00
P.g 12" AWWA C515 Gate Valve 11 EA $4,300.00 $4,300.00] $1,675.00] $1,675.00] $4.392 00 $4,382 00
P.9 18" AWWA C504 Butterfly Vaive 5] EA $5,450.00 $27,250.00] $5,111.00f $25555.00 $7,698.00| $37,990.00
P.10 }12" Water Main Connection 2] EA $9.500.00 $19,000.00] $3,935.00 $7,870.00] $4,200.00 $8,400.00
P.11 |6" Water Main Connection 1] EA $4,500.00 $4,500.00] $1,175.00 $1,175.00] $3,790.00 $3,790.00
P.12 12" Water Main Connection 2] EA $2.700.00 $5,400.00 $598.00 $1,196.00] 3$3,645.00 $7.290.00
P .13 JAsphait Street Repair 501 LF $150.00 $7,500.00 $115.00 $5,750.00] $100.00 $5,000.00
P 14 JOSHA 6,180 | LF $0.01 $61.60 $8.05] $49,588.00 $16.50] $101,640.00
P.15 |Pollution Prevention Plan 11 LS $10,000.00 $10,000.00] $10,705.00 $10,705.00] $3,850.00 $3,850.00
TOTAL PROPOSALT 198. ,988.00 358,

AT

Page 6 of 6






























ORDINANCE 2018-28

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LOCKHART, TEXAS AMENDING
THE LOCKHART CODE OF ORDINANCES, CHAPTER 58-UTILITIES, TO ADD SECTION 5845
TITLED “GOOD NEIGHBOR UTILITY CONTRIBUTION PROGRAM”; PROVIDING FOR
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING A REPEALER; PROVIDING FOR PUBLICATION; AND
ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the L.ockhart City Council instructed the City Manager at the September 18, 2018,
Council meeting to take the necessary steps to set up a Good Neighbor Utility Contribution Program
whereby utility customers and others can voluntarily contribute funds on their utility biills or otherwise
to assist utility customers that need assistance from time to time paying their utility bills; and

WHEREAS, the Lockhart City Council realizes that there are utility customers that need assistance
paying their utility bilis from time to time; and

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to set up the Good Neighbor Utility Contribution Program
authorizing the collection of voluntarily contributed funds to be used as herein described; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that it serves a public purpose for funds to be collected in the
Good Neighbor Utility Contribution Program, assigned to a non-profit social assistance agency or
entity through a contractual agreement approved by the City Council and including the entity's
disbursement criteria, and disbursed to assist utility customers who need assistance to pay their
utility biils; and

WHEREAS, the City Council realizes that at least $5,000 in voluntary contributed funds will be
needed in the fund before formalizing an agreement with a non-profit organization or entity.

NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the City Council of the City of Lockhart, Texas that the Code
of Ordinances, City of Lockhart, Texas is hereby amended by adding a section to be numbered Sec.
58-45, which said section reads as follows:

Sec. 58-45. — Good Neighbor Utility Contribution Program.

The City Manager is authorized to collect funds ($1 or more in whole dollars} contributed voluntarily
by City of Lockhart utility customers through their monthly utility bili or contributions made otherwise,
or made by other individuals or entities. Such funds shall be placed in a Good Neighbor Utility
Contribution Program Fund. Thirty days advanced notice will be required to start or stop
contributions paid on a utitity bill. These voluntarily funds are to be used exclusively for the public
purpose of helping City of Lockhart utility customers who require assistance from time to time paying
their utility bills. The City Council shall designate a non-profit agency or entity that will distribute the
contribution funds to City of Lockhart utility customers according to criteria contained in an
agreement approved by the City Council.

{all other subsections remain unchanged]

PL;



IL Repealer: Ali other ordinances, section, or parts of ordinances heretofore adopted by the
City of Lockhart in conflict with the provisions set out above in this ordinance are hereby repeaied or
amended as indicated.

1. Publication: The City Secretary is directed to cause the caption of this ordinance to be
published in a newspaper of general circulation according to law.

V. Itis hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this ordinance was
passed was open to the public as required by law.

V. Severability: if any provision, section, clause, sentence, or phrase of this ordinance is for
any reasan held to be unconstitutional, void, invalid, or un-enforced, the validity of the remainder of
this ordinance or its application shall not be affected, it being the intent of the City Council in
adopting and of the Mayor in approving this ordinance that no portion, provision, or regulation
contained herein shall become inoperative or fail by way of reasons of any unconstitutionality or
invalidity or any other portion, provision or regulation.

Vi. Effective Date: This ordinance shall become effective and be in full force upon passage.

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LOCKHART
TEXAS, ON THIS THE DAY OF , 2018.

£

CITY OF LOCKHART

Lew White, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Connie Constancio, TRMC, City Secretary Peter Gruning, City Attorney

25









4. Qualification Criteria: Customers must meet one or more of the following

e Customers must be low-income families
¢ FElderly on a fixed income
e Disabled on a fixed income

5. Terms of Agreement:

¢ The terms of this agreement is for a one year period and must be renewed
annually, prior to the beginning of the City’s fiscal year (October 1%).

* This agreement may be terminated by either party, with 30 days prior written
notice.

* This agreement may be terminated immediately if either party fails to perform in
accordance with the terms of this agreement.

¢ Inthe event this agreement is terminated by either party, CAI must provide, to the
city, a report of all funds utilized to date and refund any amount of funds which
has not been provided to customers, within 30 days of termination.

This Agreement will be effective as of the 1st day of October, 2018 for a period starting
October 1, 2018 through September 30, 2019.

City of Lockhart Community Action, Inc.
of Central Texas

(Signature)
Lew White, Mayor

(Print or type name)

(Title)






List Head of Household and ALL other persans living in Household, All information is required to determine your household eligibility. Use additional sheets if needed,

Household Member
Last, First, Middie Initial

Relationship
to applicant

Date of Birth
AND
SocSec#

Age

Gender
MorF
or Other

Race/
Ethnicity

Hispanic
YofN

Education
{Circle

Working
YorN

PAID
How often?

Health
Insurance
YorN

Veteran
YorN

Disabled
YorN

self

06 912
HS Grad/GED
12+ col
2 or 4 yr Grad

04 912

HS Grad/GED
12+ ol

2 ordyr Grad

08 9.12
HS Grad/GED
12+col
201 4 yr Grad

08 912
HS Grad/GED
12+col
2 ord yr Grad

08 912
HS Grad/GED

12+ col
2or4 yr Grad

06 ¢12
HS Grad/GED
12+cal
2 or 4 yr Grad

08 G12
HS Grad/GED
12+ col
2 ord yr Grad

08 912
HS Grad/GED

12+col
2or4 yr Grad

00 =




INCOME SOURCES (List ALL income of adults and children that are 18 years of age or older for the last 30 days)
Identify income from any of the following sources:

§ received per month times per nionth
Salary from Employment _ Yes _ Nc
Tips and Bonuses ___Yes ___No
Commissions/Fees _ Yes __ No
Recurring Gitts _ Yes No
Veteran Benefits — service or non-service ___Yes __No
Alimony _ Yes __No
Interest/ Dividends _ Yes _ _No
Social Security ___ Yes — No
Supplemental Security Income (SST) _ Yes __No
Social Security Disability Income (SSDI) _ Yes __ _No
Retirement Funds — Yes . No
Pension _ Yes _ No
Unemployment Benefits _ Yes _ No
Workers' Compensation ___Yes __ No
TANF — Yes __No
Food Stamps _ Yes __ No
Medicare/Medicaid ___ Yes _ No
General Assistance _ Yes _ No
Unknown/Not Reported _ Yes __ No
EITC . Yes _._ No
Private Disability Insurance __Yes No
Child Support: __ Anticipated ___Voluntary Court Ordered (regardless if paid)
Other:
HOUSING INFORMATION
Type: ___ Private Home ___ Mobile Home ___Apartment __  Subsidized/ Public Housing
OWN: _ Yes __ No Mortgage/Month
RENT: __ Yes ____No Rent/Month Utiliies included: __ Yes _ No
UTILITY INFORMATION
Electric Service: Account # Heating _ Cooling __ Both ___
Natural Gas Service: Account # Heating _ Cooling __ Both ___
Propane Service: Account # Heating _ Cooling __ Both ___
Typeof A/C:  __ Central __ Evaporative Window Unit _ None
Type of Heater: ___ Central ____ Electric Heater _.__ Fireplace Space Heater ___ Wall Furnace ___ None
PRIORITY INFORMATION
1. Have you ever received services with Community Action, Inc. of Central Texas? Yes No
2. Is anyone enroiled in secondary education or registered with the Texas Workforce within the last 30 days?
__Yes _ No
3. Is anyone in the household 60 yearsof ageorolder ___ Yes __ No
4. Is anyone in the household disabled? ___Yes ___ No
o. Are there any children 5 years of age or younger in the household? ___ Yes No
6. Are you interested in receiving case management services to increase income/education level? _ Yes No

3 L((




CONFLICT OF INTEREST INFORMATION

1. Is anyone in the household currently serving as an employee, agent, consultant, officer or elected or appointed
official of Community Action, Inc. of Central Texas? ___ Yes __ No

If YES, identify who and role
2. Is anyone in the household related to anyone currently serving as an employee, agent, consultant, officer or
elected official of Community Action, Inc, of Central Texas? __ Yes ___ No

If YES, identify who and role

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY: If there is a Conflict of Interest, this application requires the Executive Director’s Signature.

Executive Director Signature:

OFFICE USE ONLY: CEAP/CSBG ELIGIBILITY DETERMINA TION

1. Calculations: Monthly x12 =
Monthly x12 = Total Annual Income $
2. Household Poverty Income Level: 0-50% >50-75% >75-125% >125-150% >50%

3. Verification/Documentation of Household Income used:

Staff Signature Date

AUTHORIZATIONS AND RELEASE OF INFORMATION:

1. The information provided is true and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief.

2. L understand that my gross household income is annualized at the time of application according to pre-established agency rules
and procedures in order to receive assistance.

3.l understand that | may request a hearing to appeal a denial of eligibility, amount of assistance received, or a delay in receiving
services from Community Action, Inc. of Central Texas.

4.1 authorize the Texas Department of Housing and Community Action, Inc. of Central Texas to solicit/verify information including
employment verification needed to provide assistance with my utilities and/ or fuel bills, both past and future.

5.1am an applicant of Community Action, Inc. of Central Texas. | hereby give my permission to release and verify all information
requested and understand that it will be kept in strict confidence to be used for program purposes only.

lunderstand that photocopy of this release is as valid as the original and may be used to obtain employment information or verify
other data.

6. | understand that if | change utility companies | must notify the case worker within 5 business days of my new utility company and
account number with the name on the account. If | do not notify Community Action, Inc. of Central Texas of my new utility company
I will lase any payments due. When the information is provided any remaining assistance may be reinstated.

7. If you or another member of the household has no income the Declaration of No Income sheet must be completed for all
household members over 18 years of age having no income. On this sheet do not include anyone who has shown income on the
application, The Declaration of No Income

No longer needs to be notarized.

8. 1 UNDERSTAND THAT i AM SUBJECT TO PROSECUTION FOR PROVIDING FALSE OR FRAUDULENT INFORMATION ON THIS
APPLICATION.

Tcertify that the information on this application is correct and I also understand that receipt or assistance frough misrepresentntion or
fraud is punishable by fine or imprisonment.

Applicant Signature Date

Staff Signature Date

(when application is logqed in)
01/2018
4



eh

NEEDS ASSESSMENT

Please indicate what Needs you have below by circling either “yes” or “no” in each box.
If you circle “yes”, please explain the need you're experiencing so that we can help you.

Looking for a job/Job Search
Assistance, Resume, Other

SERVICE | NEED Explanation SERVICE NEED " Explanation
Basic Needs: Counseling:
Food, Clothing, Food Stamps, Family, Alcohol/Substance
WIC, Meals On Wheels, Abuse, Other
Emergency, Other
Income: Transportation:
55, 551, TANF, VA, Child To work, Dr. appointment, Car
Support, Budget, Other Repair, Other
- Employment Needs: Veteran Needs:

Medical, Training, Home Repair,
Handicap Access, Other,

Utility Assistance:
Electric, Natural Gas, Propane,

Other

Housing Needs:

Temporary Shelter, Subsidized,
Section 8 Housing, Repairs,
Weatherization, Others

Legal Needs:
Child Support, Criminal, Civil,
Other

Health Needs:

Immunizations, Prescriptions,
Primary Health Care, Mental
Health Care, Other

Heating/Cooling:
Heaters, Window Units,
Repairs, Water Heater,

. Natural Gas Piping/Repairs

QOther Needs:
Child Care, Elderly Care,

QOther

Education:
GED, English as a Second
Language-ESL, Vocational

_Training, Other

Other Needs not identified
on this assessment




Community Action, INC, of Central Texas

COMMUNITY SERVICES

Self Certification of Disability
Applicant’s Name:

Name of Person with Disability:

Relationship of Person with Disability to Applicant:

Persons with Disabilities--Any individual who is:

@ A handicapped individual as defined in §7(9) of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973;

® Under a disability as defined in §1614(a)(3)(A) or §223(d)(1) of the Social
Security Act or in V102(7) of the Developmental Disabilities Services and
Facilities Construction Act: or

® Receiving benefits under 38 U.S.C. Chapter 11 or 15.

APPLICANT’S AUTHORIZATION TO DECLARE DISABLED STATUS:

I hereby confirm my eligibility as a Person with Disability, in accordance with the above-stated
definition of Person with Disability.

Signature of Person with Disability or His/Her Guardian Date




DECLARATION OF INCOME STATEMENT
(DECLARACION DE INGRESOS)

Applicant Name (Nombre del Solicitante) Applicant Last Name (Apellido) Suffix (Sufijo)

Address (Direccién) City (Ciudad) Zip Code (Cddige Postal)

State the gross income for household members, 18 years and older, who have no documentation of the
income received in the 30 day period prior to the date of application for assistance: (Declarar el ingreso
recibido por los miembros de su hogar, que tienen 18 afios de edad 6 mas, y que no tienen
documentacién de ingresos por los 30 dias antes del aplicar bara asistencia)

Name (Nombre) Gross Income Received (Ingreso Bruto
Recibido)

Name (Nombre) Gross Income Received (Ingreso Bruto
Recibido)

Name (Nombre) Gross Income Received {Ingreso Bruto
Recibido)

Name (Nombre) Gross Income Received (Ingreso Bruto
Recibido)

My household has no documented proof of income due to the following situation (Mi hogar no tiene
prueba para documentar los ingresos por medio de tal razones):

T

I certify that the above information is true and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief. (Yo
certifico que la informacién proveida de los ingresos es verdadera Y correcta segun mi saber y creencia.)

I understand that the information will be verified to the extent possible; and that I may be subject to
prosecution for providing false or fraudulent information. (Comprendo que la informacién serd verificada
hasta donde sea posible y que puedo ser enjuiciado por haber proveido informacion falsa 6 fraudulenta.)

(Applicant Signature/Firma del Solicitante) {Date/Fecha)















%, o O
S S SN
<F & A S
Q\-l' élr @ e% ‘_0 Q
\‘\0 s‘\e 4‘\“0 QQ\ Q\Q‘O Q@’A
9/3/2018 9/9/2018 9/712018 9/14/2018
9/10/2018 9/16/2018 9/14/2018 9/21/2018
971712018 9/23/2018 9/21/2018 9/28/2018
9/24/2018 9/30/2018 9/28/2018 10/5/2018
10/1/2018 10/7/2018 10/5/2018 10/12/2018
10/8/2018 10/14/2018 10/12/2018 10/19/2018
10/15/2018 1012172014 10/19/2018 10/26/2018
10/22/2018 10/28/2014 10/26/2018 11/2/2018
10/29/2018 11/4/2018 11/2/12018 11/9/2018
11/5/2018 111172018 11/9/2018 11/16/2018
11/12/2018 11/18/2018 11/16/2018 11/23/2018
11/19/2018 11/25/2018 11/23/12018 11/30/2018
11/26/2018 12/212018 11/30/2018 121712018
12/3/2018 12/9/2018 12/712018 12114/2018
12/10/2018 1211612018 12/14/2018 1212172018
1211712018 12/23/2018 12/21/2018] 12/28/2018
12/24/2018 12/30/2018 12/28/2018 1/4/2019
1213112018 1/6/2019 11412019 1/11/2019

50












~KH4q,

1

‘*v N
R ; RESCY

HME Ahrens Fox
Initial Attack Pumper

Convenience

Manual air conditioning with air filter * Cruise control with steering wheel controls * Power windows *
Driver and passenger 1-touch up * Driver and passenger 1-touch down * Remote power door locks
with 2 stage unlock and ifluminated entry * Extra FOB controls PowerCode remote engine start *
Manual tilt steering wheel * Manual telescopic steering wheel * Daynight rearview mirror * Power
adjustable pedals * 911 Assist emergency $.0.S * Wireless phone connectivity * AppLink

smart device integration * 2 1st row LCD monitors * Front and rear cuphotders * Dual visor mirrors *
Full overhead console * Driver and passenger door bins * Rear door bins

Entertainment Features
SiriusXM AM/FM/Satellite radio with radio data system * Single CD player * MP3 decoder * Auxiliary

audio input * SYNC external memory control * Steering wheel mounted radio controls * 7 speakers *
Wireless streaming * Fixed antenna

Lighting, Visibility and Instrumentation

Halogen aero-composite headlights * Delay-off headlights * Fully automatic headlights * Variabie
intermittent front windshield wipers * Deep tinted windows * Front and rear reading lights *
Tachometer * Compass * Outside temperature display * Trip computer * Trip odometer

Safety and Security

4-wheel ABS brakes * Brake assist * 4-wheel disc brakes * Driveline traction control * Dual front
impact airbag supplemental restraint system * Dual seat mounted side impact airbag supplemental
restraint system * Safety Canopy System curtain 1st and 2nd row overhead airbag supplemental
restraint system * Remote activated perimeter/approach lighting * Power remote door locks with 2
stage unlock and panic alarm * Security system with SecuriLock immobilizer *

MyKey restricted driving mode * Manually adjustable front head restraints with tilt * 3 manually
adjustable rear head restraints

Selected Options

Tires: 225/70Rx19.5G BSW

Wheels: 19.5" See Option 14-10-40Q0
Radio: AM/FM Stereo/Single-CD/MP3 Player

SO 232438 09/26/18

94






\ OCK}I“‘I\)?)

43

a

Fa ., ‘,.a
RE ) gEsCY

HME Ahrens Fox
Initial Attack Pumper

CAB CONSOLE

A heavy duty angled console shall be installed in the cab between the driver and officer seats. The
console shall be finished in black powder coat for durability and low reflection. The console shall be
designed with a versatile mounting rail system that accomodates commercially available panels for
installation of items such as radio equipment. The design shall allow for a total of sixteen (16) inches
of mounting space. This option requires the center seating position to be removed from the cab.

The console shall contain the following items as standard:
Siren control head in a 3" Equipment Mounting Plate
Pump Shift in a 4" custom laminate panel
Three (3) Blank 3" Filler Plates

The following items shall be installed on the console:

Two (2) micrphone clips

Two (2) cup holders in the forward flat section of the console.

One (1) Kussmaul 091-219 Dual Port USB charging port adjacent to the cup hoiders.

BACK-UP CAMERA / GPS

There shali be supplied a Garmin NUV! 2798LMT combination back up camera and GPS. The seven
(7) inch monitor screen shall be mounted onto the cab console utilizing a RAM mounting system with
the ability to have 360° adjustment without the use of tools. The GPS functionality of the unit shall be
provided with lifetime Map updates. The camera shall be mounted recessed in the rear bumper.

WHEELS

The wheels shall be steel, factory finished in an argent color.

STAINLESS WHEEL. LINERS

The front and rear axles shall be equipped with stainless steel wheel finers.

SO 23248 09/26/18

5



UL

RE /RESCS

HME Ahrens Fox
Initial Attack Pumper

TIRE PRESSURE MONITORING DEVICE

Each tire installed on the apparatus shall be equipped with a tire pressure monitoring device. The
device shall consist of a valve stem cap to with an LED tire alert to indicate tire pressure conditions.
The LED will flash when the tire drops 8 psi below the factory setting.

DRIVELINES

Universal joints and driveshafts shall be modified for midship pump installation. The driveshaft stip

joints shalt be coated to reduce sliding friction and thrust under high torque loads. Shafts shall be
balanced to prevent vibration.

FRONT BUMPER / BRUSH GUARD / WINCH RECEIVER

The front of the chassis shall be equipped with a Fab Fours, model number FS$11-82550-1, heavy duty
plate ‘ranch’ style bumper. The black painted assembly features a full replacement bumper with full
grilf guard and bolt on 2" receiver for portable winch operation.

CAB SIDE ENTRANCE BARS

Beneath the cab doors three (3) inch round stainless steel side [nerf] bars with polyethylene step pads
shall be installed.

ELECTRONIC SIREN

A Whelen electronic siren control, modet 295SLSA1 full feature with 17 Scan-Lock siren tones including
Radio Rebroadcast, Public Address, Manual, Wail, Yelp, Air Horn, Electronic Mechanical Siren tones
and Piercer tones and hard wired microphone, shall be provided.

SIREN SPEAKER

Behind the grille there shall be a Whelen model SA315 100 watt siren speaker.

SO 23248 05/26/18

57






4]

AHRENS-FOX
V%

SALES AGREEMENT

This Sales Agreement (the “Agreement”) made by and between HME, Incorporated (Company) and

~

"ra Citv of Lockhart Fire Rascue

(Legal Name of Buyer)
261 West Markat Strest Lockhart Taxas T8hs

{Address) (City) {State/Province) (Zip/Postal Code)

1. ACCEPTANCE: The "Company" agrees to sell and the "Buyer” agrees to purchase the apparatus and
equipment (collectively the “Vehicle”) described in the HME, Incorporated specifications hereto attached and

made part of this Agreement, m accordance with the terms and conditions herein and the attached documents
referenced herein (collectively, the “Agreement”).

2. DELIVERY: Except as otherwise specified in this Agreement and provided that the Buyer has paid the
purchase price, the Vehicle shall be ready for delivery within _ 80 _ calendar days after the date this Agreement
is signed and executed by an officer of Company at the Company's Corporate Headquarters in Wyoming,
Michigan, and based upon a satisfactory completion of a Pre-Construction Conference, if requested. The
Company cannot be held liable for penalties and/or delays due to strikes, failures to obtain materials, fires,
accidents, force majeure, or any other causes beyond the Company's control. The Pre-Construction Conference
shall be conducted within 30 days from the execution of this Agreement.

To establish a stable design, procurement, and build schedule in accordance with the specifications and this
Agreement, a Buyer change order cutoff date of eight (8) weeks from the date of the execution of the Agreement
will be enforced. Changes in major components, configuration, or other items that may change the major

components or configuration, (e.g.: engine, transmission, axles, water tank, body, fire pump) will not be allowed
after the Agreement execution date.

If inability to obtain exclusive or brand name materials causes completion or delivery problems, the Company
shall advise the Buyer of said problem. The Company resolves to examine alternative sources of said material,
Material substitutions shall be mutually agreed upon by the Buyer and the Company. No substitutions shall be
made without the execution of a written change order by the Buyer.

3. CHANGE ORDERS: Changes to the Agreement may be requested by the Buyer after the execution of the
Agreement according to the terms of Section 2 of this Agreement. Changes shall be reviewed for cost and
schedule impact by the Company. Changes shall be sequentially numbered. Change Orders shall be prepared by
the HME sales representative and executed by the Buyer. The price of the Vehicle shall be adjusted to take into

account any Change Orders. Any and all Change Orders may extend the completion and delivery dates of the
Vehicle.

HME Sales Agreement, Page 1 of 3
Form 198aga - 5/7/2008

59



4. SPECIFICATIONS: The Company agrees that all material and workmanship m and about this Vehicle shall
comply with the hereto attached HME, Incorporated specifications dated 28th day of _ Sapizmber

oA
, 2018,

5. WARRANTY: The Company shall provide the warranty as specified in the attached HME, Incorporated
specifications.

6. PRICE: The Buyer shall pay, as a purchase price for the Vehicle, the sum of

Two Hundred Eightteen Thousand Two Hundred US Dollars and zero Cents
(% 218 200.0C ). All prices are less any applicable local, state, or federal taxes which may be

applied to the sale of the Vehicle. NOTE: Payment shall be made only to: HME, Incorporated, 1950 Byron
Center Avenue, Wyoming, Michigan 49519, attention: Accounts Receivable.

7. TERMS OF PAYMENT:

a) Payment of the purchase price plus cost of any authorized Change Orders, shall be paid, in full,
at the time of plant pick-up or availability for delivery, whichever is earlier.

b) No payment of any amount shall be made payable to a sales representative without written
approval from the Company.

c) It is agreed that the Vehicle covered by this Agreement shall remain the property of the Company
and not be placed in service until the purchase price and any additional costs and expenses are paid by
the Buyer. Any payment not made when due shall accrue a service charge of 1.5% per month, but in no
event shall such charge exceed the maximum rate allowed by law.

8. The Company requires, and the Buyer agrees, that the Vehicle shall be inspected and picked up by the Buyer
within seven (7) days of notice that the manufacturer of the Vehicle has been completed.

9. CANCELLATION: This Agreement is subject to cancellation by the Buyer only upon payment to the Company
of reasonable cancellation charges as determined by the Company, which shall take into account expenses
already incurred and commitments inade by the Company.

10. TAG-ON / ADDITIONAL ORDERS: At its sole discretion, the Company nay allow the terms of this
Agreement to be extended to both the Buyer and similar agencies for the purchase of a similar Vehicles under
similar terms for a period of one (1) year from the date of the execution of this Agreement. Should the Company
choose to exercise this option, it shall be permitted to adjust the Agreement pricing to account for equitable price
adjustments associated with the change in the cost of the materials used to produce the Vehicle. Such
adjustments will be based upon the Producer Price Index (PPI) for fire trucks and/or heavy transportation
equipment or by itemizing price changes expected by the Company from the component vendors. If there are
any changes between the Vehicles(s) purchased via this Agreement and any subsequent orders, those changes
must be documented via properly signed and executed Change Orders, including any necessary price

adjustments. If the purchasing agency is not the Buyer, a separate Agreement must be executed under the terms
of this Agreement to complete the additional purchases.

This Agreement, including its appendices and attachments, embodies the entire understanding between the
parties relating to the subject matter contained herein and merges all prior discussions and agreements between
them. No agent or representative of the Company has the authority to make any representations, statements,
warranties, or agreements not herein expressed and all modifications of amendments of this Agreement,
including any appendices, must be in writing signed by an authorized representative of each of the parties hereto.

HME Sales Agreement, Page2o0f3
Form 198aga — 5/7/2008

0



No surety of any performance bond given by the Company to the Buyer in connection with this agreement shall
be liable for any obligation of the Company arising under the standard warranty.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Buyer and the Company have caused this Agreement to be executed by their duly

authorized representatives this _26th day of __Septambar

COMPANY

HME, Incorporated

1950 Byron Center Avenue

Wyoming, Michigan 49519
616-534-1463 Phone
616-534-1967 Fax

BY:

2018,

BUYER

City of Lockhat TX Fire Rascue
1

201 West Market Street
Lockhnart, TX 78844

NAME:

TITLE:

DATE:

Phone (512) 393 2321
Fax {512) 520 0001

BY:
NAME:
TITLE:
DATE:

BUYERS WITNESS

WITNESSED:
NAME:
TITLE:
DATE:

HME Sales Agreement, Page 3 of 3
Form 198aga - 5/7/2008

bl


















no one has had an issue so far except the theater, and that is noted on the door hangers and the map.

Mike Mann

Founder and Owner
Caracara Brewing Company
100-A E. Market St.
Lockhart, Tx 78644
512-626-4163

b7









BN E

CITY MANAGER
SEPT 2007
SELECTION PROCESS
SUPPORT FOR DOWNTOWN EVENTS

A Special Activity Permit must be obtained from the Police Department

The event must be a “city wide community event”

If the event costs the City cash for anything, it must be pre-approved by the Council.

In-kind services can include, but not limited to, trash cans, barricades, dumpsters, reasonable
electrical services (110v) , and reasonable water services.

If alcohol is involved, security officers must be provided at the expense of the event holder and
TABC laws and the local alcohol related ordinances must be observed.

All fire and food handling regulations are applicable.

Approval of affected businesses must be obtained.

All cleanup must be by the event holder

10






_

Step 1 - Identify evaluation team & review approved
vendor applications

+ Identify an Evaluation Team
+ At least 3 people
- At least one local official

» No potential conflicts of interest with
vendors under review

+ Evaluation Team reviews
qualifications for each approved
vendor

+ Applications of respondents
identified on the Pre-Qualified
Vendor List can be found under
Professional Administrative
Services webpage

I would like to go into greater detail for each step: For Step 1

The community should first assemble the evaluation committee (or team} which should be
comprised of at least three people; including at least one local official (such as member of
the elected governing body).

When identifying committee members, communities should ensure that there are no
potential conflicts of interest between the evaluation team and any vendors under review.

The evaluation team should review the applications and qualifications for each approved
vendor. The “pre-qualified list” of vendors and their corresponding applications are posted
on the TDA website under the “Professional Administrative Services” tab.

To help facilitate review of vendors’ qualifications, the evaluation team may also request a
copy of “part 2” responses from any vendor’s application. These responses include
descriptions of character, reputation, good standing with TDA and clients, any previous
contract termination and/or noncompliance, and information regarding the respondents
history of debarment, suspension, or exclusion from federally funded programs.

12



Step 2 — Select firms to consider further

+ Evaluation Team must select at least three vendors from
the Pre-Qualified List to consider further

» One or more of the vendors selected for further
consideration must qualify under at least one of
these categories:

+ Minority-owned Business (MBE)
- Woman-owned Business (WBE)
+ Small Business Enterprise (SBE)
+ Section 3 Business (S3)

Based on the qualifications reviewed by the evaluation team, at least three vendors must
be selected fram the “pre-qualified list” for solicitation. The committee may choose (and is
highly encouraged) to consider as many vendors as it wishes.

Please keep in mind that one or more of the vendors selected for solicitation must qualify

as:

Minority Owned (MBE)
Woman-Owned (WBE)
Small-Business Enterprises {SBE)
Section 3 Businesses

These self-identified categories are included in the pre-qualified list on our website.

12






AMBULANCE (EMS) BILLING and RELATED
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

AGREEMENT BETWEEN
City of Lockhart EMS
AND
K&P ASSOCIATES INC. dba SPECIALIZED BILLING
& COLLECTION SYSTEMS OF TEXAS

THIS AGREEMENT, hereinafier "AGREEMENT", is made and entered into the _ dayof

, 2018 by and between City of Lockhart EMS, hereinafter “PROVIDER", and Specialized
Billing & Collection Systems of Texas, hereinafter "CONTRACTOR".

SUBJECT:

During the term of this agreement, CONTRACTOR shall be exclusively responsible for the billing and
collection of all charges and fees relating to the emergency medical services provided by PROVIDER.
These will include, but not be limited to, all charges and fees to be made to private insurers, Medicare,

Medicaid, any other governmental agencies, individual patients and their responsible partics,
(collectively, "Payors™).

TERM:

This AGREEMENT shall be effective for a one (1) year period, commencing , through
» unless terminated as provided for herein. This AGREEMENT shall renew for one (1)
additional year at the end of the initial term unless terminated as provided for herein. All terms and

conditions of this AGREEMENT shall remain in full force and effect during any renewal term unless
this AGREEMENT is amended in writing.

COMPENSATION AND METHOD OF PAYMENT:

The CONTRACTOR shall be paid by PROVIDER a monthly amount representing fees for the services
provided as follows:

A. 6% of all funds collected by CONTRACTOR on behalf of services provided by PROVIDER:
and

B.  15% of all funds collected by CONTRACTOR for PROVIDER'S use of
CONTRACTOR provided field data collection and reporting software license fee, hereinafter
"RescueNet ePCR System."

15



All payments and explanation of benefits for claims submitted by CONTRACTOR on behalf of
PROVIDER shall be made payable to PROVIDER and mailed to P.O. Box 691363 Houston, Texas
77269-1363.

CONTRACTOR shall mail all benefit checks, with account statements, to PROVIDER within five (5)

business days. CONTRACTOR shall not be responsible for personal checks made by patients or paid on
their behalf.

CONTRACTOR shall not hold, retain any interest in or cash any benefit payment, nor shall

CONTRACTOR have any control over or right to withdraw any funds from PROVIDER'S bank
account.

If PROVIDER requires all funds received be deposited into a Lock-box service, PROVIDER shall
assume all cost associated with the service. An accounting of funds deposited into PROVIDER'S Lock-
box shall be forwarded to CONTRACTOR weekly, together with any related statements regarding
payments or denials.

CONTRACTOR shall submit monthly invoices representing fees for the services provided to
PROVIDER. PROVIDER shall issue a check for the amount invoiced, less any disputed amounts,
within thirty (30) days of receipt. Any disputes shall be made in writing to CONTRACTOR within
fifteen (15) days of the date of the disputed item or amount is received by PROVIDER, otherwise
CONTRACTOR'S invoice shall be deemed accurate and correct. CONTRACTOR shall respond to any
such notice of dispute within fifteen (15) days of receipt. Any past due amounts which are not the

subject of a good faith notice of dispute shall accrue interest at the rate of twelve percent (12%) per
annum.

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:

CONTRACTOR is an independent contractor and is not an employee or agent of PROVIDER.
CONTRACTOR has no authority to sign any document that imposes any liability on PROVIDER. To
the extent necessary to fulfill its billing services under the AGREEMENT, CONTRACTOR is
authorized only to sign on behalf of PROVIDER, in an administrative capacity, for the purpose of
establishing billing accounts with patient insurers. CONTRACTOR shall retain full control over those
who are in the employ of CONTRACTOR and may be direct agents of CONTRACTOR, including the
employment, direction, compensation, discipline and discharge of all persons assisting in the
performance of this AGREEMENT. CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for all matters relating to

payment of its employees, including Social Security, withholding tax and all other laws and regulations
that govern such matters.

INDEMNIFICATION:

CONTRACTOR shall indemnify PROVIDER for, and hold PROVIDER harmless from, claims made
against PROVIDER by any person or entity as the result of CONTRACTOR'S negligent acts or
omissions in CONTRACTOR'S performance under this AGREEMENT.

This indemnification agreement does not and will not be applicable to any claim of adjustment,

recoupment, or request for reimbursement made by any insurance company or any serving agency for
Medicare or Medicaid that may be made as the result of audits or claims made as provided by those

7l



companies' rules and policies or government regulations or laws, except any adjustments or claims for
reimbursement as are shown to be made as the direct result of CONTRACTOR error.

CONTRACTOR is not, in any way, to be held as, nor is it to be found it is acting as, an insurer of
PROVIDER, in any nature, whether in form or substance, under this clause or this AGREEMENT.

INSURANCE:

CONTRACTOR shall procure and maintain for the duration of the AGREEMENT, the following
insurance coverage:

1. Workers' Compensation Insurance in compliance with applicable state and federal laws.
2. General Liability Insurance in an amount no less than $1,000,000.00 per occurrence.

3. Coverage for business interruption, destruction of data processing equipment and
media, liabilities affecting accounts receivables, contracts and independent contractors
and, valuable documents in an amount no less than $100,000.00 aggregate.

4. Liability coverage for all vehicles whether owned, hired or used in the amount of
$500,000.00.

CONTRACTOR shall furnish the PROVIDER with certificates of insurance prior to
commencement of contract.

CONFIDENTIALITY:

The terms and conditions of this AGREEMENT are confidential and neither party shall release any of
the terms hereof to any third party without prior written consent of the other party, except to the extent
necessary to comply with the law, a valid court order, or a valid order or requirement of governmental
agency. Notwithstanding the foregoing, either party may, without the prior written consent of the other
party, disclose the existence of a contractual relationship between both parties. Should PROVIDER
receive any request for any such information, PROVIDER shall immediately advise CONTRACTOR of
such request, the date thereof and the person or entity requesting same.

CONTRACTOR has developed and owns equipment, computer hardware and software as well as billing
data, profiles, statistics, fees and codes for its billing and claims processing. Such data and information as
well as the processing systems and related functions are the property and trade secrets of CONTRACTOR

and PROVIDER shall not release any such information relating to CONTRACTOR’S billing and claims
processing data.

All files and records received by CONTRACTOR for claim processing as well as the billing records shall
remain in the possession of CONTRACTOR during the term of this AGREEMENT and for an additional

period of six (6) years after date of service and termination, unless otherwise agreed to in writing by and
between the Parties.

11



PROTECTED HEALTH INFORMATION:

It is recognized by both parties that data submitted to CONTRACTOR by PROVIDER and its
authorized users will include “Protected Health Information” as that term is defined in HIPAA
regulations at 45 CFR § 164.501. CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with applicable provisions of
HIPAA as more fully set forth in the attached Business Associate Agreement.

CONTRACTOR represents that its software, databases, servers and communication protocols and
procedures, when properly utilized by both parties in accordance with this AGREEMENT, meet the security
standards established by HIPAA for the protection of Protected Health Information.

TERMINATION:

During the term of this AGREEMENT, CONTRACTOR and/or PROVIDER may terminate this
AGREEMENT, without cause, after first giving Sixty (60) days’ prior written notice.

This provision does not limit or restrict the nght of either party to cancel this AGREEMENT for cause or to
enforce this AGREEMENT as may be provided or founded upon the common laws or the statutory laws of
contract established under the laws of the State of Texas. The defaulting party shall be given at least
Sixty (60) days’ written notice to cure any alleged default prior to cancellation for cause.

Upon termination of this AGREEMENT, with or without cause, by either party, CONTRACTOR shall be
entitled to its fees for continued processing of any and ail outstanding claims and billings as may then be in
the hands of CONTRACTOR that are pending, but unpaid, at the time of the effective date of cancellation

of this agreement. PROVIDER shall be obligated to pay the agreed fees for these services as set forth in this
AGREEMENT.

VENUE:

All questions pertaining to the validity and interpretations of this AGREEMENT shall be determined in
accordance with the laws of Texas. CONTRACTOR'S principal place of business is in Harris County,

Texas. Venue for any legal action by either Party against the other concerning this AGREEMENT shall be
in Caldwell County, Texas.

DATA MANAGEMENT LICENSE - DATA ENTRY - RECORDS & REPORTS:

RescueNet ePCR System:

CONTRACTOR is a preferred software billing service partner with ZOLL Data Systems which holds all

property rights and trademarks of the RescueNet cPCR. System utilized by CONTRACTOR to provide its
billing services.

CONTRACTOR shall be assigned 8 User Agreements of ZOLL Tablet ePCR software to PROVIDER.
Any additional User Agreements will be charged to PROVIDER, at a one- time charge of actual current
market price from ZOLL Data Systems, per User Agreement during the term of this AGREEMENT.

CONTRACTOR will grant PROVIDER electronic access to all of PROVIDER'S records on file with

CONTACTOR, including, but not limited to, medical records, billing records, correspondence regarding
accounts, and records of PROVIDER’S personnel including credentials. PROVIDER agrees not to copy,

14



distribute, sell, reproduce, alter, enhance, modify, reverse engineer or use for any other purpose any part of
the RescueNet ePCR System other than the purpose authorized by this AGREEMENT.

CONTRACTOR has and maintains an Internet Server, hereinafter referred to as RescueNet ePCR System
for use by PROVIDER with the ZOLL RescueNet ¢PCR System compatibility software for the purpose of
allowing the electronic transmission of patient data derived from and as the result of PROVIDER'S having
furnished emergency medical and other EMS or ambulance services directly to CONTRACTOR'S web site.

CONTRACTOR has furnished PROVIDER with the ZOLL RescueNet ePCR System compatibility
software to access CONTRACTOR'S web site. This software requires a specific license fee to be paid for
each device on which it is to be installed. The installation, reverse engineering or cloning of hard drives or

other use of the software for use on computer systems for which a license fee has not been paid is a violation
of law.

CONTRACTOR has approved PROVIDER owned or otherwise utilized computer systems for the initial
installations of the ZOLL RescueNet ePCR System compatibility software for which license fees have been
paid.

PROVIDER shall advise CONTRACTOR of the need for and CONTRACTOR shall approve Or oversee
the installation of the software onto any and all additional, new and replacement computer systems not

initially installed at the time of the signing of this AGREEMENT and PROVIDER shall pay any applicable
license fees.

Each computer system on which the ZOLL RescueNet ePCR System access software has been installed and
license fee paid will be assigned a specific log-in code from which patient data can be transferred to
CONTRACTOR'S web site. This access code shall identify the computer system from which PROVIDER
is transmitting patient data as well as the identity of the person transmitting the data. Each new or additional

computer system that PROVIDER utilizes and a license fee is paid will be assigned its own specific access
code.

PROVIDER'S duly designated Administrator will be issued a specific access code to access
CONTRACTOR'S data banks and other information maintained on CONTRACTOR'S web site. Neither
the Administrator nor his/her authorized personnet shall attempt to reverse engineer or change the data
contained in CONTRACTOR'S RescueNet ePCR System web site data banks.

ACCESS TO DATA IN RESCUENET EPCR:

Access to data in the RescueNet ePRC System regarding PROVIDER'S patients and services and related
records shall be limited to the HIPPA QUALIFIED employees, representatives and agents of
CONTRACTOR and authorized Administrative personnel of the PROVIDER. A complete and signed
access form for each of the PROVIDER'S personnel authorized to access RescueNet ePCR System must be
submitted to and approved by CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall use its best efforts to maintain the
security of the RescueNet ePCR System, but shall not be responsible for negligence with respect to security
passwords issued to PROVIDER'S personnel or other breaches gaining access to PROVIDER'S records
beyond CONTRACTOR'S reasonable control.

74






PROVIDER may be required to enter into additional agreements with makers of third party medical
devices, such as monitors, scanners, EKG machines, printers and other devices with the respect to the
transmission of information between the ancillary devices and the data entry system. PROVIDER
understands and agrees that its failure to enter into or reach agreements with such third parties shall not
be deemed a default of CONTRACTOR under this AGREEMENT or any other arrangements between
PROVIDER and CONTRACTOR. PROVIDER further understands and agrees that the failure to enter

into such agreements with these third parties may hinder PROVIDER'S use of certain software features
that might otherwise be available to it.

PROVIDER may need to obtain new or different medical or other equipment capable of
communicating with the computer system data entry devices. PROVIDER understands and agrees that

such new or different medical or other equipment and associated software will be obtained at the
PROVIDER'S sole cost and expense.

PROVIDER may request CONTRACTOR to support additional medical or other devices. PROVIDER
understands and agrees that the cost of developing an interface may be significant and may involve the
payment of royalties to the third party manufactures of the device. PROVIDER further understands and
agrees that CONTRACTOR has no obligation to undertake the development of interfaces with

additional medical or other devices, which are not compatible with the RescueNet ePRC System or
provided system software,

STATISTICAL REPORTING:

Statistical and financial data reports will be available to PROVIDER'S Administrator on RescueNet
ePCR System at all times the System is available. The format and content of the data will be

established and defined by CONTRACTOR and such reports may be added to, modified or deleted
without notice to PROVIDER.

PROVIDER may request specific, custom reports to be available to it at an additional charge to be
negotiated between CONTRACTOR and PROVIDER.

PROVIDER acknowledges and agrees and understands each report represents a particular moment in
time and it may not be accurate with respect to the financial picture as a whole. The underlying data
may be subject to modification or correction from time to time, which may change the results of the
report or its interpretation. The data represented in the report represents only a limited portion of all
data available, which constantly remains fluid, regarding the PROVIDER'S cumulative data.

ASSIGNMENT OF AGREEMENT:

CONTRACTOR shall not sell, transfer, assign or otherwise disclose the terms of this AGREEMENT or
any part or work provided, or of its right, title or interest therein, unless otherwise provided in the

AGREEMENT, without prior written consent by the PROVIDER. The RescueNet ePCR System
compatibility software is not transferable.

NOTICES:

Any notice given, or required to be given, under this AGREEMENT shall be in writing and shall be
addressed to the parties hereto at the addresses set out below. Any such notices shall be deemed as

gl









BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

THIS BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) dated, (the
“Effective Date”), is entered into by and between City of Lockhart, Texas, (“Covered Entity™)} and Specialized
Billing and Collection Systems of Texas (“Business Associate), each a “Party” and collectively, the “Parties.”

Covered Entity and Business Associate have entered into, are entering into, or may subsequently enter
into, agreements or other documented arrangements (collectively, the “Business Arrangements™)} pursuant to
which Business Associate may provide products and/or services for Covered Entity that require Business
Associate to access, create and use health information that is protected by state and/or federal law.

Pursuant to the Administrative Simplification provisions of the Health Insurance Portability and
Accountability Act of 1996 (“HIPAA”), the U.S. Department of Health & Human Services (“HHS™)
promulgated the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Information (the “Privacy
Standards™), at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, requiring certain individuals and entities subject to the Privacy
Standards (each a “Covered Entity”, or collectively, “Covered Entities™) to protect the privacy of certain
individually identifiable health information (“Protected Health Information” or “PHI™).

Pursuant to HIPAA, HHS issued the Security Standards (the “Security Standards™), at 45
C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, for the protection of electronic protected health information (“EPHI™).

In order to protect the privacy and security of PHI, including EPHI, created or maintained
by or on behalf of the Covered Entity, the Privacy Standards and Security Standards require a
Covered Entity to enter into a “business associate agreement” with certain individuals and entities providing
services for or on behalf of the Covered Entity if such services require the use or disclosure of PHI or EPHI.

On February 17, 2009, the federal Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act was signed into law (the “HITECH Act™), and the HITECH Act imposes certain privacy and security

obligations on Covered Entities in addition to the obligations created by the Privacy Standards and Security
Standards.

The HITECH Act revises many of the requirements of the Privacy Standards and Security Standards
concerning the confidentiality of PHI and EPHI, including extending certain HIPAA and HITECH Act
requirements directly to Business Associates.

The HITECH Act requires that certain of its provisions be included in business associate

agreements and that certain requirements of the Privacy Standards be imposed contractually upon Covered
Entities as well as Business Associates.

The Texas Legislature has adopted certain privacy and security requirements that are more restrictive
than those required by HIPAA and HITECH, and such requirements are applicable to Business Associates as
“Covered Entities” as defined by Texas law; and because Business Associate and Covered Entity desire to enter
into this Business Associate Agreement, in consideration of the mutual promises set forth in this Agreement and

the applicable Business Arrangements, and other good and valuable consideration, the sufficiency and receipt of
which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows:

1. Business Associate Obligations. Business Associate may receive from Covered Entity, or create or
receive on behalf of Covered Entity, health information that is protected under applicable state and/or
federal law, including without limitation, PHI and EPHI. All references to PHI herein shall be construed
to include EPHI. Business Associate agrees not to use or disclose (or permit the use or disclosure of)
PHI in a manner that would violate the Privacy Standards, Security Standards the HITECH Act, or
Texas law, including without limitation the provisions of Texas Health and Safety Code Chapters 181

BY



and 182 as amended by HB 300 (82™ Legislature), effective September 1, 2012, in each case including
any implementing regulations as applicable (collectively referred to hereinafter as the “Confidentiality
Requirements™) if the PHI were used or disclosed by Covered Entity in the same manner.

2. Use of PHL. Except as otherwise required by law, Business Associate shall use PHI in complance with
45 C.F.R. § 164.504(¢). Furthermore, Business Associate shall use PHI (i) solely for Covered Entity’s benefit
and only for the purpose of performing services for covered Entity as such services are defined in Business
Arrangements, (ii) for Data Aggregation Services (as hereinafter defined), and (iii) as necessary for the proper
management and administration of the Business Associate or to carry out its legal responsibilities, provided that
such uses are permitted under federal and state law. For avoidance of doubt, under no circumstances may
Business Associate sell PHI in such a way as to violate Texas Health and Safety Code, Chapter 181.153, as
amended by HB 300 (82nd Legislature), effective September 1, 2012, nor shall Business Associate use PHI for
marketing purposes in such as manner as to violate Texas Health and Safety Code Section 181.152, or attempt to
re-identify any information in violation of Texas Health and Safety Code Section 181.151, regardless of whether
such action is on behalf of or permitted by the Covered Entity.

To the extent not otherwise prohibited in the Business Arrangements or by applicable law, use, creation
and disclosure of de-identified health information, as that term is defined in 45 CFR§ 164.514, by Business
Associate is permitted.

3. Disclosure of PHI. Subject to any limitations in this Agreement, Business Associate may

disclose PHI to any third party persons or entities as necessary to perform its obligations under the
Business Arrangement and as permitted or required by applicable federal or state law.

3.1 Business Associate shall not and shall provide that its directors, officers, employees,

subcontractors, and agents, do not disclose PHI to any other person (other than members of their
respective workforce as specified in subsection 3.1(ii) below), unless disclosure is required by law or authorized
by the person whose PHI is to be disclosed. Any such disclosure other than as specifically permitted in the

immediately preceding sentences shall be made only if such disclose has previously signed a written agreement
that:

(1) Binds the disclosee to the provisions of this Agreement pertaining to PHI, for the
express benefit of Covered Entity, Business Associate and, if disclosee is other than
Business Associate, the disclosee;

(i) Contains reasonable assurances from disclosee that the PHI will be held confidential as

provided in this Agreement, and only disclosed as required by law for the purposes for which it was
disclosed to disclosee:; and

(iii) Obligates disclosee to immediately notify Business Associate of any breaches of the
confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent disclosee has obtained knowledge of such breach.

32 Business Associate shall not disclose PHI to any member of its workforce and shall

provide that its subcontractors and agents do not disclose PHI to any member of their respective
workforces, unless Business Associate or such subcontractor or agent has advised such person of Business
Associate’s obligations under this Agreement, and of the consequences for such person and for Business
Associate or such subcontractor or agent of violating them. Business Associate shall take and shall provide that
each of its subcontractors and agents take appropriate disciplinary action against any member of its respective
workforce who uses or discloses PHI in contravention of this Agreement.

33 In addition to Business Associate’s obligations under Section 9, Business Associate agrees to

mitigate, to the extent commercially practical harmful effects that are known to Business Associate and is the
result of a use or disclosure of PHI by Business Associate or Recipients in violation of this Agreement.

35



4. Access to and Amendment of Protected Health Information. Business Associate shall;
(i) provide access to, and permit inspection and copying of, PHI by Covered Entity; and

(ii) amend PHI maintained by Business Associate as requested by Covered Entity. Any such

amendments shall be made in such a way as to record the time and date of the change, if feasible, and
in accordance with any subsequent requirements promulgated by the Texas Medical Board with respect to
amendment of ¢lectronic medical records by HIEs. Business Associate shall respond to any request from
Covered Entity for access by an individual within seven (7) days of such request and shall make any amendment
requested by Covered Entity within twenty (20) days of the later of (a) such request by Covered Entity or (b) the
date as of which Covered Entity has provided Business Associate with all information necessary to make such
amendment. Business Associate may charge a reasonable fee based upon the Business Associate’s labor costs in
responding to a request for electronic information (or the fee approved by the Texas Medical Board for the
production of non-electronic media copies).

Business Associate shall notify Covered Entity within five (5) days of receipt of any request for access
or amendment by an individual. Covered Entity shall determine whether to grant or deny any access or
amendment requested by the individual. Business Associate shall have a process in place for requests for
amendments and for appending such requests and statements in response to denials of such requests to the
Designated Record Set, as requested by Covered Entity.

5. Accounting of Disclosures. Business Associate shall make available to Covered Entity in response to a
request from an individual, information required for an accounting of disclosures of PHI with respect to the
individual in accordance with 45 CFR § 164.528, as amended by Section 13405(c) of the HITECH Act and any
related regulations or guidance issued by HHS in accordance with such provision.

6. Records and Audit. Business Associate shall make available to the United States Department of Health
and Human Services or its agents, its internal practices, books, and records relating to the use and disclosure of
PHI received from, created, or received by Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity for the purpose of
determining Covered  Entity’s compliance with the Confidentiality Requiremnents or the requirements of any
other  health oversight agency, in a time and manner designated by the Secretary.

7. Implementation of Security Standards; Notice of Security Encidents. Business Associate will use
appropriate safeguards to prevent the use or disclosure of PHI other than as expressly permitted under this
Agreement. Business Associate will implement administrative, physical and technical safeguards that
reasonably and appropriately protect the confidentiality, integrity and availability of the PHI that it creates,
receives, maintains or transmits on behalf of Covered Entity. Business Associate acknowledges that the
HITECH Act requires Business Associate to comply with 45 C.F.R. §§164.308, 164.310, 164.312 and 164.316
as it Business Associate were a Covered Entity, and Business Associate agrees to comply with these provisions
of the Security Standards and ali additional security provisions of the HITECH Act.

Furthermore, to the extent feasible, Business Associate will use commercially reasonable efforts to
secure PHI through technology safeguards that render such PHI unusable, unreadable and indecipherable to
individuals unauthorized to acquire or otherwise have access to such PHI in accordance with HHS Guidance
published at 74 Federal Register 19006 (April 17, 2009), or such later regulations or guidance promulgated by
HHS or issued by the National Institute for Standards and Technology (*NIST®) concerning the protection of
identifiable data such as PHI.

Lastly, Business Associate will promptly report to Covered Entity any successful Security
Incident of which it becomes aware. At the request of Covered Entity, Business Associate shall
identify: the date of the Security Incident, the scope of the Security Incident, the Business
Associate’s response to the Security Incident and the identification of the party responsible for
causing the Security Incident, if known.



8. Data Breach Notification and Mitigation.

8.1 HIPAA Data Breach Notification and Mitigation. Business Associate agrees to implement
reasonable systems for the discovery and prompt reporting to Covered Entity of any “breach” of “unsecured
PHI” as those terins are defined by 45 C.F.R. § 164.402. Specifically, a breach is an unauthorized acquisition,
access, use or disclosure of unsecured  PHI, including ePHI, which compromises the security or privacy of the
PHI/ePHI. A breach compromises the security or privacy of PHI/ePHI if it poses a significant risk of financial,

reputational, or other harm to the individual whose PHI/ePHI was compromised (hereinafter a

“HIPAA Breach”). The parties acknowledge and agree that 45 C.F.R. § 164.404, as described below in
this Section 8.1, governs the determination of the date of discovery of a HIPAA Breach. In addition to the
foregoing and notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, Business Associate will also comply with
applicable state law, including without limitation, Section 521 Texas Business and Commerce Code, as
amended by HB 300 (82nd Legislature), or such other laws or regulations as may later be amended or adopted.
Inthe event of any conflict between this Section 8.1, the Confidentiality Requirements, Section 521 of the
Texas Business and Commerce Code, and any other later amended or adopted laws or regulations, the most
stringent requirements shall govern.

82 Discovery of Breach. Business Associate will, following the discovery of a HIPAA

Breach, notify Covered Entity without unreasonable delay and in no event later than the earlier of the
maximum of time allowable under applicable law or three (3) business days after Business Associate discovers
such HIPAA Breach, unless Business Associate is prevented from doing so by 45 C.F.R. §164.412 concerning
law enforcement investigations. For purposes of reporting a HIPAA Breach to Covered Entity, the discovery of
a HIPAA Breach shall occur as of the first day on which such HIPAA Breach is known to the Business

Associate or, by exercising reasonable diligence, would have been known to the Business Associate.
Business Associate will be considered to have had knowledge of a HIPAA Breach if the HIPAA Breach is
known, or by exercising reasonable diligence would have been known, to any person (other than the person
committing the HIPAA Breach) who is an employee, officer or other agent of the Business Associate.

8.3 Reporting a Breach. Without unreasonable delay and no later than the earlier of the maximum of
time allowable under applicable law or five (5) business days following a HIPA A Breach, Business Associate
shall provide Covered Entity with sufficient information to permit Covered Entity to comply with the HIPAA
Breach notification requirements set forth at 45 C.F.R. § 164.400 er seq. Specifically, if the following
information is known to (or can be reasonably obtained by) the Business Associate, Business Associate will
provide Covered Entity with:

(i) Contact information for individuals who were or who may have been impacted by the

HIPAA Breach (e.g., first and last name, mailing address, street address, phone number, email
address);

(ii) a brief description of the circumstances of the HIPAA Breach, including the date of the
HIPAA Breach and date of discovery;

(1i1) a description of the types of unsecured PHI involved in the HIPAA Breach {e.g., names,
social security number, date of birth, addressees), account numbers of any type, disability codes
diagnostic and/or billing codes and similar information);

kl

(iv) a brief description of what the Business Associate has done or is doing to investigate the
HIPAA Breach, mitigate harm to the individual impacted by the HIPAA Breach, and protect against
future HIPAA Breaches; and

(v) appoint a liaison and provide contact information for same so that Covered Entity
may ask questions or learn additional information concerning the HIPAA Breach.

37









(vi} “Security Rule” shall mean the HIPAA regulation that is codified at 45 C.F.R. Part 164.

(vii) “Protected Health Information” or “PHI” means any information, whether oral or
recorded in any form or medium: (i) that relates to the past, present, or future physical
or mental condition of an individual; the THSA— Model Business Associate Agreement Page 10
provision of health care to an individual; or the past, present, or future payment for the provision of health care
to an individual; and (ii) that identifies the individual or with respect to which there is a reasonable basis to
believe the information can be used to identify the individual, and shall have the meaning given to such term

under the Privacy Rule, including, but not limited to, 45 CFR Section 164.501. [45 CFR
$§160.103 and 164.501.

(viii) The Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health (“HITECH™) Act
shall mean Division A, Title XIII of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009 (Pub. L. 111-5). The U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (*HHS™)
interim final rule at 74 Fed. Reg. 42,740 implements the security breach notice
provisions of HITECH.

(ix) Any other capitalized term not otherwise defined in this Section 13.10 or this
Agreement shall have the meanings set forth in the Privacy Standards, Security
Standards or the HITECH Act, as applicable.

COVERED ENTITY: BUSINESS ASSOCIATE:
CITY OF LOCKHART SPECIALIZED BILLING & COLLECTIONS
OF TEXAS
By: By:
Lew White Karen Laake
Title: Mayor Title: President-CEQ
Date: October 2, 2018 Date:

q0


















10

——— -

b

R

-

‘ol il .

o

&

WASTEWATER
TREATMENT
FaCILIFY

N

075 1% 300
e — ]
SCALL (FEET}

SCALE @ 1% = 150

PROP LT LINE

PROS CENTERLIVE OF ROAD
PROP SETBACKS

PROF EDGE OF PAVEMENT

ELALDANG PADI (L7 X BCT

TRAGT 15441/ ACRES
RESANENTIAL LOTS [SXTI) = 840
PARK LOTSOPEN SPACE =1

)

6§ 8

0 CADEXT 15 RANTED T
BUBLC UNUNES, 814G 20 PEET
ALQRE TV ROAD PN A, MO
15 FEET o 20€ comen oM

M&S ENGINEERING

CRIL | ELECTRICAL | STRUCTUAAL | MEP | SURVEYING

L i P Bt A e

HARTLAND RANCH
PRELIMINARY LAND PLAN - B

CALDWELL COUNTY

JOB_13jPCARODL

DATE v 2018

Toa

oRawn
oEscy. __jou.
recn
Jrevisions.
T I RETER
|
SHEET:










CITY MANAGER WILL MEET WITH CTMW ASAP TO EXPLORE THEIR POSSIBLE USE OF THE
BUILDING.

ALL EXPRESSED REGRET THAT THE CULTURAL GROUP COULD NOT BE ACCOMODATED AT THE
SITE.

Mr. Brad Westmoreland approached the committee and provided a $30,000 check from the
former church member coffers to the City to be used toward the project. He commended the
committee on their decision; the committee was reminded the group had already given 510,000
to the City to help the asbestos study and other needs.

6. DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION REGARDING RECOMMENDATION TO CITY ABOUT USE OF THE
PROPERTY
TO BE PROVIDED LATER AFTER DISCUSSIONS FURTHER WITH CENTRAL TEXAS MEALS ON
WHEELS.

7. SET DATE/TIME FOR NEXT MEETING
COMMITTEE WILL BE NOTIFIED BY CITY STAFF AFTER GETTING ACCOMODATION LIST FROM
CTMW IF THEY CAN USE THE BUILDING AND QUOTES.

8. ADJOURN 6:45 PM
MOTION BY TERRY BLACK AND SECOND BY FRANK JACKSON TO ADJOURN. VOTED 6 TO O TO

APPROVE MOTION
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTUES: 2" gy
VOTE:
Minutes passed and approved this the day of ,2018

Chairperson

Jackie Westmoreland

4









~1.0}

TO:  Mr. Sean Kelly
City of Lockhart
Lackhart Tx. 78644

RE: Asbestos Abatement

KMAC

CONSTRUCTION SERVICES, INC,
9819 BALL STREE'T
SAN ANTONIO TEXAS 78217
Office — 210-599-6528 — Fax - 210-599-2824

St. Paul Catholic Chureh & Hall

Lackhart, Texas 78644

KMAC Construction Scrvices, [nc, submits the following proposal for youwr revicw and consideration.
SCOPFE. OF WORK:

KMAC will provide labor, supplies, materials, equipment and standard insurance (o accomplish the
removal and disposal of floor tile and mastic and window caulk and sheetrock in the chapel.ln the parish
hail all interior sheetroek and floor in the kitchen.workcers will prep the containment and setup negative air
label waste and {oad out,and final elcan containment. Afler a visual inspection by
project manager is passed workers will cncapsulate the containment. Project manager will run air
clearances, after air clearances pass workers will tear down containment.Label, double bag all waste and
dispose at a approved landfill A copy of the manifest will be provided to the owner at the completion of the
projecl All work will be performed following OSHA, EPA, TDH, Federal, State and local rules and

units.workers will

ASBESTOS ABATEMENT PROPOSAL

regulations.Owner will provide water and electricity. This priee includes onc mabilizalion.

PRICING :

DURATION :

EXCLUSIONS:

TERMS:

§ 36313.00

10 Days

Air Monitoring and Consulting Fees
Tx. Dept. of Health Asbestos Fees

Due Upon Completion (C.0.D.)

If you have any questions regarding the above scope of work, please da not hesitate 1o contacl me.

5 iﬁcerely,
Mark A Muota
Mark Mata

Projcct Manager / Estimator

Purchase Qrder #: _ . _
Please sign and return proposal if accepted:

Signature

Date









LIST OF BOARD/COMMISSION VACANCIES

Updated: August 21, 2018

Board Name Reappointments/Vacancies Council member

Board of Adjustment Nic Irwin moved to Lockhart Economic Development Corp. Any Councilmember T

APPLICATIONS RECEIVED TO BE ON A BOARD/COMMISSION

APPLICANT BOARD REQUESTED DATE RECEIVED RESIDENCE DISTRICT
Lockhart Economic Development Corp.
Rick Arnic and 07/03/2018 District 3

Planning & Zoning Commission

ion Board . N
. _Constructlgn oard Currently resides outside city limits.
Historic Preservation Commission

Suzy Falgout Parks & Recreation 08/20/2018 Is renovating future residence on
Commerce St.

Any other Board where needed

450






LG)

COUNCILMEMBER BOARD/COMMISSION APPOINTMENTS PAGE 2 Updated 08/16/2013

NOTES:
ORINNANCE
RE: ALL
BOARI.
COMMISSION
APPOINTMENTS

Sec. 2-209. - Rules for appointment.
The ¢ity council hereby sets the following rules:

(1) Except as may be established by existing city ordinances/resolutions the process for selecting members shall be open to all Lockhart citizens, who must apply for
appointment, to include those applying for reappointment. Reappoeintment shall not be deemed automatic.

{2} Council shall seek to appeint the most qualified or best persons available, while also respecting the need for diverse community opinions.

{3} No member of any appointed body shall serve on more than one quasi-judicial or advisory board or commission.

(4) No appointed body shall deviate from its charge, deliberate items not on its agendas, or speak for the council or City of Lockhart without council authorization.

(5) Subject to other qualifications as specifically required for membership on the below boards and commissions, the city council shall have the right (but not the duty) to appoint
up to two members who are not Lockhart citizens but who are residents of Caldwell County to the Lockhart Airport Advisory Board, the Eugene Clark Library Board, and the

construction board of appeals.
(6) Subject to other qualifications as specifically required for membership on the below boards and commissions, the city council shall have the right (but not the duty) to
appoint up to two members who are not Lockhart citizens but who are residents of Caldwell County, to the Lockhart Airport Advisory Board, the Eugene Clark Library

Board, and the construction board of appeals.

Section 2-210. Method of selection; number of members; terms.

(@) The mayor and city councilmembers shall nominate individuals to serve on boards and commissions. Each nomination shall then be confirmed by a simple majority of the
entire city council.

(b) Except as provided herein, there shall be seven members appointed to each board or commission corresponding with the seven members or places of the city council.
Each city councilmember, except at provided herein, shall nominate a qualified person to serve in a place on an appointed body corresponding to their place on the
council. At-large councilmembers shall be designated as places 5 and 6, and the mayor's position as place 7, for the purpose of this section. Nominations shall be made
to fill vacant positions and/or positions whose terms have expired within 50 days of the event, such as a resignation or an election. Should any city councilmember fail to
name an appointee to one of his/her corresponding places on any body within the above described 90 days, ancther councilmember shall then have the privilege to
nominate a perscn to fill that same position, as described in subsection (a). However, once that position becomes vacant again for any reason, the appointment shail
revert to the place corresponding with the original city council seat/place number for nominations.

(c} Beginning with the election in May, 1998, the council shall nominate and confirm four members to serve in places 1, 2, 5, 6 on each board and commission in accordance
with subsections (a) and (b) above, and with the standards set in Ordinance Number 97-09, Governance Policies. With the election of May, 1939, the remaining three
places shall be filled following the same procedure as above.

(d)Terms of service on appointed bodies shall be the same three-year terms as the councilmember who nominates a person to serve. However, a person may be appointed to
complete the unexpired term of a vacant position, due to a resignation, for example.

(e) When a perscn has completed a term, or terms, of service and will be vacating a place, that person may continue to serve until a replacement is nominated and confirmed
by the city council.

(fy At the discretion of the majority of the city council, one Caldwell County resident who is alsc an owner of real property within any local historic district may be appointed as
a full member to the historical preservation commission.

(g) Exceptions to the above regulations shall be all volunteer/special purpose/ad hoc committees appointed from time to time by the city council and the zoning board of
adjustments, whose members shall serve two-year terms in accordance with V.T.C.A., Local Government Code § 211.008. All other provisions of this section, and
ordinance number 97-09 which do not conflict with the chapters establishing these bodies shall be applicable.

Sec. 2-212. Removal and resignation of members.
{(a) All board, commission and committee members serve at the pleasure of the city council and may be removed from office with or without cause at the discretion of the city

council.
(b) Board, commission and committee members may resign from office at any time by filing a written resignation, dated and signed by the member, with the City Secretary.
Such resignation shall take effect upon receipt by the City Secretary without further action by the city council. If the city council appeints a new member to replace the
resigned member, the new member shall be appointed to serve out the remainder of the resigned member's term.










COUNCILMEMBER BOARD/COMMISSION APPOINTMENTS PAGE 5 Updated 08/10/2018

District 3 — Kara McGregor Airport Board Ray Chandler 02/06/18
Board of Adjustment Anne Clark, Vice-Chair 12/19/17

Kirk Smith (Alternate) 12/05/17

Construction Board Jerry West, Vice-Chair 01/02/18

Eco Dev. Revolving Loan Lew White, Chair 12/19/17

Eco Dev. Corp. 4 Cent Sales Tax | Nic Irwin 12/05/17

Electric Board Thomas Stephens 12/19/17

Historical Preservation Ronda Reagan 12/19/17

Library Board Jean Clark Fox, Chair 12/19/17

Parks and Recreation Warren Burnett 12/05/17

Planning & Zoning Philip McBride, Chair 12/19/17

District 4 - Jeffry Michelson Airport Board Mark Brown, Vice-Chair 03/07/17
Board of Adjustment Wayne Reeder 12/05/17

Construction Board Rick Winnett 12/05/17

Eco Dev. Revolving Loan Frank Coggins 12/05/17

Eco Dev. Corp. ¥ Cent Sales Tax Morris Alexander 12/05/17

Electric Board lan Stowe 03/06/18

Historical Preservation Kathy McCormick 12/05/17

Library Board Donaly Brice 12/05/17

Parks and Recreation Russell Wheeler 12/05/17

Planning & Zoning Mary Beth Nickel 12/05/17

Mayor Pro-Tem (At-Large) — | Airport Board Andrew Reyes 03/07/17
Angie Gonzales-Sanchez Board of Adjustment Laura Cline, Chair 03/07/17
Construction Board Paul Martinez 03/07/17

Eco Dev. Revolving Loan Irene Yanez 03/07/17

Eco Dev. Corp. /2 Cent Sales Tax | Alfredo Munoz 06/06/17

Historical Preservation Juan Alvarez, Jr. 03/07/17

Library Board Jodi King 03/07/17

Parks and Recreation Chris Schexnayder 03/07/17

Planning & Zoning Philip Ruiz, Vice-Chair 03/07/17




COUNCILMEMBER BOARD/COMMISSION APPOINTMENTS PAGE 6 Updated 08/16/2018
At-Large - Brad Westmoreland | Airport Board Jayson “Tex” Cordova 03/07/17

Board of Adjustment Severo Castillo 03/07/17

Construction Board (Alternate) | Gary Shafer 03/07/17

Eco Dev. Revolving Loan Edward Strayer 03/07/17

Eco Dev. Corp. 2 Cent Saies Tax | Frank Estrada 03/07/17

Historical Preservation Richard Thomson 11/21/17

Library Board Rebecca Lockhart 03/07/17

Parks and Recreation Dennis Placke 03/07/17

Planning & Zoning Christina Black 03/07/17

Charter Review Commission Ray Sanders 03/01/16 — Michelson

(Five member commission) Bill Hernandez 03/01/16 — Michelson

Term - 24 months after | Roland Velvin 03/01/16 — Michelson

appointment Elizabeth Raxter 03/01/16 — Hiiburn
Alan Fielder 03/15/16 — Hilburn

Sign Review Committee Gabe Medina 03/17/15 - Mayor Pro-Tem Sanchez

(no longer meeting) Neto Madrigal 04/21/15 - Councilmember Mendoza
Terry Black 12/19/17- Councilmember McGregor

Kenneth Sneed
Johnny Barron, Jr.
Tim Clark

03/17/15 — Mayor White
03/17/15 — Councilmember Castillo
03/17/15~ Councilmember Michelson

Parks Master Plan Steering
Committee (8-10 members)

Albert Villalapando
Dennis Placke

Nita McBride
Rebecca Pulliam
Bemie Rangel
Derrick David Bryant
Beverly Anderson
Carl Ohlendorf
Beverly Hill

09/05/17 — Parks Bd appointee
09/05/17 — Parks Bd appointee
12/05/17— MeGregor
09/19/17— Michelson

09/19/17 — Castillo

09/19/17 - Sanchez

09/19/17 - Mendoza

09/19/17 — Westmoreland
09/19/17 — Mayor White




Al

COUNCILMEMBER BOARD/COMMISSION APPOINTMENTS

PAGE 7 Upduted 08/10/2018

Church Property Ad-hoc
Committee (7 members)

Amelia Smith

Jackie Westmoreland
Todd Blomerth
Andy Govea

Terry Black

Jane Brown
Raymond DeLeon
Dyral Thomas

09/05/17 — Westmoreland
09/05/17 — Westmoreland
09/05/17 — Mayor White
09/1917 — Sanchez
12/19/17 — McGregor
09/19/17 — Michelson
09/20/17 — Castillo
09/22/17 — Mendoza

Wayfinding  Signage  and
Community Branding Ad-Hoc
Committee (5 members)

Kara McGregor

Roy Watson

Chris St. Leger

Taylor Burge

Christie Pruitt—Lockhart Chamber
Laura Rivera-Hispanic Chamber
Vanessa Fischer

Kate Collins

Katie Westmoreland Mills

(11/02/2018
(11/02/2018
01/02/2018
02/06/2018
02/08/2018
02/09/2018
02/09/2018 (ex-ofticio)
02/06/2018 (ex-officio)
02/06/2018 (ex-officio)




LOCKHART CITY COUNCIL FY 17-18 GOALS

Category and Priority Order

COUNCIL |PRIORI SUGGESTED FUNDING SOURCE
MEMBER TY GOALS IDENTIFIED BY COUNCIL FOR FY 17-18 (as submitted by Councilmembers) BY COUNCILMEMBER CATEGORY
with GF Expiring debt saving
BH 3 Continue Improving City Cemetery and/or Cemetery Tax CEMETERY
Jeff M 2 |Refurbish City Hall in the inside (to make more inviting to the public) as well as doing some CITY BLDGS
landscaping outside
BW 3 |Spruce up and clean up City properies CITY BLDGS
BH 4 (Improve City Facilities Appearance General Fund CITY BLDGS
JC 4 |City Facilities CITY BLDGS
AGS 10 |[Convention Center CONVENTION CTR
JC 2 Crime CRIME
AGS 4 Police Task Force: Budget extra funds for a Police Task Force, a Narcotics Officer and a Mental CRIME
Health Officer to address any drug and gang related problems and mental issues our city is
being faced not only on the East side of our city but citywide. Budget for updated training for
our police officers. There is alot of training that is free but alot additonal money for
registration fees and course material.
Jeff M 4 |Work with Police Department to bring back drug enforcement program CRIME
LW 8 [Fund for helping utility customers in need ?7?? CUSTOMER SERV
BW 2 |Continue to change angle parking downtown: 200 Blk S Main, 100 Blk N Main, 100 Blk N DOWNTOWN
Commerce, 200 Blk E Market; little time and expense invovled
LW 2 Downtown improvements,bathrooms, electric, pedestrian safety, beautification, wifi, lighting  |?? DOWNTOWN
AGS 9 [Parking around and surrounding the square. Issues with larger vehicles parked in areas that are DOWNTOWN
narrow and that make it hard to see oncoming traffic
LW 1 |Expanding economic development department, budget, office, staff?, marketing General fund, LEDC ECCONOMIC DEV
AGS 3 Economic Development: Recurit more businesses especailly retail and continue efforts; contact ECCONOMIC DEV
existing and vacant building owners to see if they are willing to work with the City of Lockhart
to bring retail businesses and speciality shops, as well as industrial. Purchase buildings and
land when on the market for possible new businesses for the city.
JC 3 Economic Development ECCONOMIC DEV
AGS 5 |Subdivision development to attract more businesses to Lockhart. ECCONOMIC DEV
M Set up meetings with developers for more retail space shopping centers along US 183 ECCONOMIC DEV

Page 1




LOCKHART CITY COUNCIL FY 17-18 GOALS

Category and Priority Order

COUNCIL (PRIORI SUGGESTED FUNDING SOURCE
MEMBER TY GOALS IDENTIFIED BY COUNCIL FOR FY 17-18 (as submitted by Councilmembers) BY COUNCILMEMBER CATEGORY
More Events to Attract Tourism in Lockhart and Include Way Finding Signage (Hotels and
AGS 6 Restaurants) ECCONOMIC DEV
AGS 1 |All Department Heads to Budget Salary Increases for all City Employees. EMPLOYEES
M 1 City Employee Raises EMPLOYEES
M 2 |House or fund gym membership/space (weight rm) in Senior Center area (cardio machine) for EMPLOYEES
City employees
AGS 8 |Employee: Possible additional Employee Holiday Time Off-Alternating System. Even though EMPLOYEES
this has been discussed and the reasons for why it cannot be done, | would like to see a time
off alternating system, especailly during the holidays.
BW 1 |ENFORCE ordinances that pertain to unsightly properties all over town ENFORCEMENT
Jeff M 1 |Enforce city ordinance regarding residential property ENFORCEMENT
Jeff M 3 |Continue to work on City Park improvements PARKS
M 3 Do inventory of City properties to idenify areas for pocket parks LEDC funds PARKS
LW 3 Park improvements General fund PARKS
BH 5 Parks Improvements General Fund PARKS
JC 5 Parks PARKS
AGS 7 |Parks Improvemens: Purchase and update the park equipment to provide safe and fun filled PARKS
parks for all to use.
LW 7 |Town branch cleanup and beautification ?7?? PARKS
M 4  |Start process of Funding Sidewalks east of 183 connecting to the US 183 sidewalks SIDEWALKS
LW 6 |sidewalk repair and expansion general fund bond SIDEWALKS
BH 1 IMPLEMENT SIGNAGE IN LOCKHART General Fund (LEDC) and/or SIGNAGE
Hotel Tax
LW 4  |wayfinding, branding general fund SIGNAGE
LW 5 Entry signs general fund SIGNAGE
Jeff M 6 |Signage on Highway 183 and SH130 = directing people to Lockhart SIGNAGE
BW 4 SR CITIZENS CTR
Pursue opportunity to move Senior Citizens' Center to St Paul United Church of Christ Property
JC 1 Roads Grants or impact fees STREETS/INFRAS
AGS 2 Infrastructure: Continue City Infrastructure: Drainage, Street Repairs, Completion of Curbing, STREETS/INFRAS
Brighter Lighting in Neighborhoods
BH 2 Continue improving City Streets Increase Transportation Fund STREETS/INFRAS
Jeff M 5 |Continue to make improvements and redoing our city streets STREETS/INFRAS

Page 1




Lockhart City Council
FY 16-17 Goals
Revised 3-10-2016, 8:30 pm

Priority

Council Person

Goals Submitted

City Manager Comments

Infastructure

Complete 2015 CO projects and need budget of $250,000 per year for
streets, continue water and sewer main replacements; continue electric
distribution maintenance plan-get new substation on line. Replace bad

1 Castillo water raw water mains and find additional water for the future.
Department Heads to Budget Salary Increases for city employees so that we can keep our Est Cost Per % Increase Annually: Gen Fund (Not Civil Serv) $
1|/Gonzales-Sanchez current city employees. 29,000; Gen Fund Civil Serv $ 24,000; Other/Utilities: $ 15,000- Add'l

Improve City Cemetery with GF Expiring debt saving and/or Cemetery Tax

Cemetery Tax up to 5 cents allowed by State Law. Expiring GF debt

1 Hilburn committed to Police and Fire increased pay rates. ($132,000)
Find ways to use activity center for multi-purpose use. (basketball, volleyball). Funding source:
1 Mendoza Different companies in town If approved by Council staff would approach local businesses
Continue to improve infrastructure (drainage, street repairs) throughout the city
1 Michelson Complete 2015 CO and budget $250,000 per year for street materials
Enforce ordinances that pertain to unsightly properties all over town.
Make homeowners/residents (because some may be renters) take pride in their environment.
It is an eyesore to drive around town and see overgrown properties, junked cars, and stacks of
trash on porches, in yards and driveways. All levels of socio-economic residents in this town
have shown evidence of being disrespectful to their environment. City has no esthetics ordinance currently. The term "unsightly" is
1/Westmoreland subjective and is difficult to prove in court.

[y

White

Economic Development-expanding budget to get staff qualified to help Sandra with
recruitment, working with LEDC to either build Spec building or invest in more property, Main St
program to relieve Sandra of a lot of those duties

Main Street Program would require another person and funding to work
with local businesses while Economic Development would conscentrate
on new businesses and new jobs

Castillo

Economic Development

Need 12-15,000 sf of retail spaces with reasonable lease per sf and
buildings that are 20 to 50,000 sf for industrial and maunufacturing

N

Gonzales-Sanchez

Infrastructure: Continue City Infrastructure: Drainage, Street Repairs, Completion of Curbing,
Brighter Lighting in Neighborhoods

Complete 2015 CO projects and need budget of $250,000 per year for
streets, continue water and sewer main replacements; continue electric
distribution maintenance plan-get new substation on line. Replace bad
water raw water mains and find additional water for the future. Most
streets that lack curbing will need to be totally reconstructed. Brighter
LED lights being experimented with since costs have come down.

Implement City Signage

Initial required funds up to $40,000 if City Crew does the work; total cost

2 Hilburn could be more than $70,000
New_ Park equipment. Funding Source: Each Councilmember responsible for a park and finding Estimate: $ 400,000 annually over next 4 years based on input from
2/Mendoza funding sources Parks Board Advisory Board
Continue to improve ways to attract businesses to Lockhart
Need more 12-15,000 sf of retail spaces with reasonable lease per sf
2|Michelson and buildings that are 20 to 50,000 sf for industrial and maunufacturing
Create a policy for the residency of future admininstrative positions to live within the Lockhart
city limits. If an administrator wants to be employed by the City of Lockhart, they need to reside |It is not legal to require all department heads to live in the City limits;
here. Sharing in the daily lives of our citizens seems crucial to making decisions about only the City Manager is required to do so. All non-24 emergency
2 Westmoreland Lockhart. They are paid by city taxes. response employees must live within 25 mintues of City Limis

2|White Continue street rehab Need $ 250,000 annually minimum for street work materials
. City Facilites Not sure what this includes; can asses all departments for physical
3|Castillo needs
Economic Development: Recurit more businesses especailly retail and continue efforts ;
contact existing and vacant bldg owners to see if they are willing to work with City to bring LEDC could fund another report but the company says our numbers still
these small retail businesses, as well as industrial; possibly purchasing two downtown county |should be good. Costs estimated $22,500 for updating data and
buildings when on the market for possible new businesses in the downtown area. Stronger recruitment. Prime softgood companies constantly want to be on
platform with LEDC with methods to sell Lockhart and attract businesses. Highway 183 in 12-15,000 sf and at a reasonalbe cost per sf plus higher
3/Gonzales-Sanchez traffic counts.

S:\council mtg uploaded presentations\Mar 12 2016\1 FY 16-17 CITY COUNCIL GOALS ALL SUBMITTED - REVISED 3-10-2016




Lockhart City Council
FY 16-17 Goals
Revised 3-10-2016, 8:30 pm

Priority Council Person Goals Submitted City Manager Comments
Current transportation monthly rate is $ 4 for residential and others;
$260,000 annual which helps fund labor and equipment, but is not
sufficient for materials. Another $250,000 for materials is needed
3/ Hilburn Continue improving city streets: Increase Transportation Fund annually.
Wi-Fi Free Zones Downtown Square. Funding source City Budget, School District, Downtown
3/Mendoza sponsors Rough estimate is about $12,000
Refurbish City Hall If atrium removed, add more offices estimated at $45,000 and more
outside landscaping estimated at $ 5,000; elevator going in with
3|Michelson improvements to restrooms and offices

w

Westmoreland

Approach interested and future businesses cordially.
Stringent ordinances (and the way they are approached), scare off some businesses. Let's be
friendly in a positive way.

City Mgr respectfully requests names of such businesses. He has met
with 18 business representatives over past 15 months that were looking
at Lockhart but did not come. Except for the non-residential exterior
building esthetics ordinance, none of them indicated a problem with the
current ordinances or with staff. The main problems were high land
prices and the lack of "ready built retail and industrial buildings", and
traffic counts were not high enough. Most thought the impact fee
schedules were very reasonable compared to other cities. Will continue
to work toward friendlier customer service with simplified ordinances.

Park master plan to consider park bond issue, recreation dept and staff issues

Master Plan estimate: $ 45,000, recreation dept est at least $
60,000 for a recreational professional with another $30,000 for

3/White equipment and materials
Est Cost Per % Increase Annually: Gen Fund (Not Civil Serv) $
29,000; Gen Fund Civil Serv $ 24,000; Other/Utilities: $ 15,000- Add'l
Employees Wages Cost FY 16-17 due to Civil Serv Pay Plan Expansions already
4 Castillo apprroved: $ 132,000
Police Task Force: Budget extra funds to bring pack a_much needed P'0|ICE Tas'k Force to Initial required funds up to $40,000 if City Crew does the work: total cost
address any drug and gang related problems this city is being faced with especially on the East could be more than $70,000
4/Gonzales-Sanchez  |side of our city. Possibly ask the County to assist with funding. '

Continue working on bringing industry to Lockhart: Continue supporting Ms. Mauldin

LEDC is will have sufficient funding to be more aggressive starting FY 16-|

4 Hilburn 17
4 Mendoza Training Start up: Neighborhood Watch Training and Program: Police Budget E:::utsrfgf'\ll:éih(g‘ogz:)tic:;?p\;vtiagﬁhvli)/irlcl)ig;a:g 't?yp:gs;zl_“ was not sustained
4 Michelson Improve signage on HWY 183 as well as SH130 = directing people to Lockhart Possibly use of some of the KTB grant money

Evaluate and/or change the degree of the angled parking along the 4 blocks off of the square.

This would be: Main Street from Market to Prairie Lea Street; Main Street from San Antonio

Street to Walnut Street; Commerce Street from Market Street to Prairie Lea Street, and

Commerce Street from San Antonio Street to Walnut Street. These parking spaces were made

before long vehicles were made! If ther are cars parked on both sides of the streets, only one

care can pass through at a time. Then it becomes a one lane street. | have witnessed a Estimate to black out existing thermoplastic markings, redefine layout,

differenct angled parking arrangement, and it provides more room and is much safer for the and apply new thermoplastic markings with angle parking  =$ 12,000;
4 Westmoreland drivers and pedestrians. will probably loose 4 spaces per block. 2 on each side

Branding and wayfinding—may be included in #1 Initial required funds up to $40,000 if City Crew does the work; total cost
4 White could be more than $70,000

Parks Estimate: $ 400,000 annually over next 4 years based on input from
5|Castillo Parks Board Advisory Board

Working with 6 more subdivisons, either new or expanding, and possibly

5/Gonzales-Sanchez Subdivision development to attract more businesses to Lockhart one more very large one northwest.

Improve tourism in Lockhart - City Council continue to work with and encourage Chambers of
Commerce to be more involved

Council can make this directive to Chambers when dividing out HOT

5|Hilburn funds
Finding more funding for Retail Market Study. Zip code demographics with reports. Funding LEDC could fund another |"eport but the company says our numbers stil
LEDC should be good. Costs estimated $22,500 for updating data and
5/Mendoza recruitment.

S:\council mtg uploaded presentations\Mar 12 2016\1 FY 16-17 CITY COUNCIL GOALS ALL SUBMITTED - REVISED 3-10-2016



Lockhart City Council
FY 16-17 Goals
Revised 3-10-2016, 8:30 pm

Priority

Council Person

Goals Submitted

City Manager Comments

Work with LEDC or someone equivalent to build a building to help attract business

Need more 12-15,000 sf of retail spaces with reasonable lease per sf.
Most softgood retailers want 12-15,000 on Hwy 183 at a reasonable

5|Michelson price and increased traffic volumes
Sidewalks to include lighting Funding required; for example San Jacinto to Jr High estimate is
5/White $130,000 just for materials along Maple walkway
More Events to Attract Tourism in Lockhart and Include Way Finding Signage (Hotels and Initial required funds up to $40,000 if City Crew does the work; total cost
Restaurants) could be more than $70,000. Chambers could use HOT for more
6 Gonzales-Sanchez tourism.

Continue to work on City Park improvements

Estimate: $ 400,000 annually over next 4 years based on input from

6 Michelson Parks Board Advisory Board

6 White Pursue possible ESD-EMS district Legal issue with participation by County and City of Luling preferable
Parks Improvemens: Purchase more park equipment to provide safe and fun filled parks for all |Estimate: $ 400,000 annually over next 4 years based on input from

7|Gonzales-Sanchez to use. Parks Board Advisory Board

Mendoza

Start Talks With YMCA Austin again. Seek sponsors funding if necessary

Our population hurt in previous discussions, Will pursue again. They
usually want commitment for a minimum number of individuals and
families depending on population of not only City but its metro area

~

Michelson

Work on building a civic center/ recreation center

$ 9 million plus land $ 2.5 million for about 20,000 sf plus about
$240,000 annual maintenance costs and minimum of $60,000 for
utilities; estimated revenues offset is about $60,000; take out recreation
center and cost go down about 20%. It has been reported that Bastrop is
spending over $500,000 per year to operate its civic center. Revenues
not covering costs.

~

White

Cemetery maintenance

Cemetery Tax up to 5 cents allowed by State Law

[ee]

Gonzales-Sanchez

City Hall: Refurbish with Improvements and/or Upgrades

Elevator and improvements to restrooms planned; better offices for
Connie and Sandra planned also.

©

Gonzales-Sanchez

Convention Center

$ 9 million plus land $ 2.5 million for about 20,000 sf plus about
$240,000 annual maintenance costs and minimum of $60,000 for
utilities; estimated revenues offset is about $60,000; take out recreation
center and cost go down about 20%. It has been reported that Bastrop is
spending over $500,000 per year to operate its civic center. Revenues
not covering costs.

10

Gonzales-Sanchez

Employee: Possible additional Employee Holiday Time off-Alternating system

City emlpoyees now have 12 holidays and 1 personal holiday; time off is
granted by seniority with department head responsible for keeping
sufficient personnel to serve the public needs. Employees also receive
at least 2 weeks of vacation time. Those employees required to work on
holidays receive their normal pay plus holiday pay.

S:\council mtg uploaded presentations\Mar 12 2016\1 FY 16-17 CITY COUNCIL GOALS ALL SUBMITTED - REVISED 3-10-2016




City of Lockhart
Future Debt Payments as of 9/30/15
TOTAL

Description 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 DEBT
General Government
Hotel Tax Fund
2009 Tax & Revenue 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 520,000
Total Hotel Tax Fund P & | 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 520,000
LEDC |
2008 GO Refunding 300,000 300,000
2015 Tax & Revenue 37,357 48,093 48,093 48,044 48,103 48,152 63,645 63,670 63,513 63,543 63,555 63,643 63,687 65,647 65,544 65,575 65,482 65,579 65,538 65,676 1,182,139
Total LEDC Fund P & | 337,357 48,093 48,093 48,044 48,103 48,152 63,645 63,670 63,513 63,543 63,555 63,643 63,687 65,647 65,544 65,575 65,482 65,579 65,538 65,676 1,482,139
2015 Capital Projects Fund
2015 Tax & Revenue ‘ 122,620 122,620

|
Total 2015 Capital Projects Fund 122,620 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 122,620

[
Drainage |
2008 GO Refunding 31.00% 100,000 100,000
2015 Tax & Revenue 100,000 116,289 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 2,016,289
Total Drainage Fund P & | 200,000 116,289 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 2,116,289

[
General Fund |
2008 GO Refunding 91,210 91,210
2015 Tax & Revenue - -
Total General Fund P & | 91,210 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 91,210
Debt Service Fund
2009 Tax & Rev CO's 100.00% 333,210 331,060 328,972 327,883 336,575 329,615 737,655 742,642 741,325 743,920 750,210 749,978 753,440 7,206,485
2006 Tax & Rev CO's 100.00% 50,455 48,815 47,175 50,535 48,690 46,845 292,515
2006-A Tax & Rev CO's | 93.00% 266,916 267,594 267,890 267,803 267,332 271,128 1,608,664
2015 Tax & Revenue 12.00% 91,487 117,779 117,779 117,659 117,803 117,923 155,867 155,927 155,543 155,615 155,645 155,861 155,969 160,769 160,517 160,592 160,365 160,602 160,502 160,831 2,895,035
Total Debt Service Fund P & | 742,068 765,248 761,816 763,880 770,400 765,511 893,522 898,569 896,868 899,535 905,855 905,839 909,409 160,769 160,517 160,592 160,365 160,602 160,502 160,831 | 12,002,699

[
Total General Government 1,533,255 969,630 949,909 951,924 958,503 953,663 | 1,097,167 | 1,102,239 | 1,100,381 | 1,103,078 | 1,109,410 | 1,109,482 | 1,113,096 326,416 326,061 326,167 325,847 326,181 326,040 326,507 | 16,334,957

[

C:\Users\crodriguez\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\KDDN9DG8\Debt for Council FY16 04/12/2016



City of Lockhart
Future Debt Payments as of 9/30/15

TOTAL
Description 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 DEBT
Proprietary
Electric Fund
2008 GO Refunding 3.59% 40,379 40,379
2013 SIB Loan 30.81% 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,152 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,152 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,152 1,280,721
Total Electric Fund P & | 111,530 71,151 71,151 71,152 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,152 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,152 - - 1.321.]:00
Water Fund
2006A Tax & Rev CO's 7.00% 20,090 20,142 20,164 20,157 20,122 20,408 121,082
2008 GO Refunding 36.38% 409,192 409,192
2009 GO Refunding 86.69% 165,829 165,775 165,656 165,477 169,357 168,625 167,709 170,852 169,384 171,937 174,082 171,534 177,194 2,203,410
2015 Tax & Revenue 49.60% 378,148 486,818 486,818 486,322 486,917 487,413 644,248 644,496 642,909 643,207 643,331 644,223 644,670 664,510 663,468 663,778 662,842 663,822 663,406 664,800 | 11,966,146
2013 SIB Loan 35.80% 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 1,488,169
Total Water Fund P & | 1,055,935 755,411 755,314 754,632 759,071 759,122 894,633 898,024 894,969 897,820 900,089 898,433 904,540 747,186 746,144 746,454 745,518 746,498 663,406 664,800 | 16,187,999
Sewer Fund
2008 GO Refunding 16.36% 183,990 183,990
2009 GO Refunding 13.31% 25,461 25,452 25,434 25,407 26,002 25,890 25,749 26,232 26,006 26,398 26,728 26,336 27,206 338,302
2015 Tax & Revenue 4.30% 32,783 42,204 42,204 42,161 42,213 42,256 55,852 55,874 55,736 55,752 55,773 55,850 55,889 57,609 57,518 57,545 57,464 57,549 57,513 57,643 1,037,388
2015 Tax & Revenue TRNSF 170,305 186,594 186,302 186,653 186,945 279,275 279,421 278,487 278,662 278,735 279,261 279,523 291,203 290,590 290,773 290,222 290,798 290,554 291,374 4,905,677
2013 SIB Loan 33.39% 77,102 77,102 77,102 77,103 77,102 77,102 77,103 77,102 77,102 77,103 77,102 77,102 77,103 77,102 77,102 77,103 77,102 77,102 1,387,844
Total Sewer Fund P & | 319,336 315,064 331,334 330,973 331,971 332,193 437,979 438,629 437,331 437,915 438,338 438,549 439,721 425,914 425,210 425,421 424,788 425,449 348,067 349,017 7,853,201
Airport Fund
2000 Airport 100.00% -
Total Airport Fund P & | - - - - B - -
Total Proprietary Fund L &l 1,486,801 | 1,141,626 | 1,157,799 | 1,156,757 | 1,162,193 | 1,162,466 | 1,403,764 | 1,407,804 | 1,403,451 | 1,406,887 | 1,409,579 | 1,408,133 | 1,415,412 1,244,252 | 1,242,505 | 1,243,026 | 1,241,458 | 1,243,099 | 1,011,473 | 1,013,817 | 25,362,300
Grand Total } 3,020,056 | 2,111,256 | 2,107,708 @ 2,108,681 @ 2,120,696 | 2,116,129 | 2,500,931 | 2,510,043 | 2,503,832 | 2,509,965 | 2,518,989 | 2,517,615 2,528,508 | 1,570,668 | 1,568,566 | 1,569,193 | 1,567,305 1,569,280 | 1,337,513 | 1,340,324 | 41,697,257

C:\Users\crodriguez\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\KDDN9DG8\Debt for Council FY16 04/12/2016









